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SUCCESS IN SCALE

SEVERFIELD-ROWEN Pic IS THE LARGEST
SPECIALIST STEELWORK GROUP IN THE UK,
WITH AN ENVIABLE REPUTATION FOR
PERFORMANCE AND VALUE.
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Highlights 01

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 2007

»

»

»

»

Revenue of £300 7 million (2006
£295 1 million)

Record margins due to focus on quality
projects for major clrents

» Record underlying* operating margin
increased to 14 2% (2006 9 9%)

» Underlying profit before tax margin
Increased to 14 3% (2006 10 3%

Underlying profit before tax increased to
£42 9 million (2006 £30 3 mullion)

Retained profit after tax £26 4 million
(2006 £209 million)

»

»

»

»

»

»

Following acquisition and capital
expenditure, year end borrowings
of £48 1 million (2006 net funds
£38 2 milkion)

Ali core businesses performed strongly
with a focus on prime projects

Continued high quality projects
undertaken

Successful acquisition and integration of
Fisher Engineering Ltd

Record order book of £455 million,
plus a very high level of future
contract prospects

2008 commenced well

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Revenue :’J::fciatdying Operating
0
up1.9% up86.6%
at £300 7m at £42.7m
Underlying Profit Underlying Profit Retained Profit
Before Tax Before Tax Margin After Tax
up41 8% up39.3% up 26.39
at £42 9m at 14 3% at £26 4m

Underlying Basic

Dividend Per Share

Earnings Per Share
1p39.4y uwd0.4%
at 35 74p at20.0p

© Underlyng s before amortisation of acqguired intangible assets of £2 2 million and
the movement In valuation of dervative finanaal instruments of £2 39 million

Financial Review

Corporate Governante

Group Accounis Company Accounts
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Group Overview

OUR BUSINESSES

Highhghts

Group Cvervew

Chairmanss Statement

Operanonal Review
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Severfield-Rowen Plc
Holding company

Severfield—Reeve Structures Ltd
Steel fabrication

Watson Steel Structures Ltd
Steel fabnication

Atlas Ward Structures Ltd
Steel fabncation

Fisher Engineering Ltd
Steel fabrication

Rowen Structures Ltd
Project contracting

Steelcraft Erection Services Ltd
< Severfield-Reeve Structures’ Steel erection

production facihty at Dalton, North Yorkshire .
Severtfield-Reeve International Ltd

Site key
Lines 1-5 Fabncanon Overseas contracts
Line & Fabsec/Plated beams

Lines 7-9 Intumescent (Fire Protection) Paint Severficld—Reeve Projects Ltd

Area 10 Small components {not shown in picture)
Area 11 Raw matenal stock Project managers of building contracts

Area 12 Fabncated stock
Area 13 Fithngs workshop

€« Watson Steel Structures’ ‘
production facility at Bokon Lancashire

€« Adas Ward Structures’
praduction facility at Sherbum North Yorkshire

€  Fisher Engmeermg’s
production fachty at Enniskillen, Northem lreland |

Financal Review Corparate Governance Group Accounts Company Accounts




Severfield-Rowen Plc Annual Repert 2007

04

Group Overview

MARKET SECTORS

CITY CENTRE
& RETAIL

STADIUMS

LEISURE

COMMERCIAL
OFFICES

TRAMSPORT

BRIDGES

Maior redevelopment in
cities and out-of-town
shopping facilites are
challenging projects in
their own nght, requinng
different skills and
service selutions

Project management and
supply chain linkage are
wital aspects in the
provision of successful
execution

Highlights

The Group has an
unrvalied record in the
design engmeenng and
building of many of the
UK s best known venues
As specalists in the
sector, it has provided
umely and cost-effective
solutions for long
spanming, archutecturally
innovative structures

Much of the Group s
success stems from ats
understanding of dient
needs, coupted with its
relevant resource and

capability

Growup Overview

This sector has grown
signuficantly n recent
years and conbmues to
be an important ene for
the mdustry Group
successes include sk
domes, exhibibon
centres and recently the
roof of Wimbledon
Cenfre Court.

Charman s Statement

Commeraat offices in
Landen and throughout
the UK have become a
core of the Groups
acinity In response to
the challenge new
products processes and
methods have been
developed Performance
benefits [rom rAasssc
and ‘A rEsEam , together
with other imtiatives,
have underpinned the
Group s success in this
sector

A major interest for all
companies within the
Group 15 transport and
related faclities Rowen
and Watson have
successfully and for
some tirne, been key
partners m many
prestigious projects,
mduding Air and Rait
faclities

Operavonal Review

Watson Steel has
developed the
engineenny skills and
manufactunng capabiity
to provide chents with
solutions to the most
demanding reguirements
i this sector
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HOSPITALS

INDUSTRIAL
& PROCESS

The Group continues to use

its extensive resource and
capacity to service key projects,
fulfilling the delivery of large-
scale and often complex
steelwork, for major clients.

WAREHOUSE &
DISTRIBUTION

EDUCATION

CAR PARKS

POWER STATIONS

Hospitals are inareasingly
being speafied with
structural steel frames
Span length enhanced
flsability, adaptathty
and speed of
construction are
significant advantages for
the Group in this
growng sector

Severfield-Rowen has
the capabality to deal
with any special
construction and
ENGINeenng requirement.
It 15 one of the UK s most
skilled and versatle
groups of companies
with specialist expenence
In the design and
fabncation of platework,
tubutar framed structures
and speaahst pipework

Financial Review

This ts one of the
Group s key sectors,
providing a constant and
significant proportion of
turnover [t posibion 1§
sustained by competitive
strengths induding
design capability, supply
chain co-ordination and
fabncation/erection
speeds

Corporate Governance

Group companies have
extensive expenence in
the provision of
structural steelwork in
education fachites An
important sector, which
continues to grow
throughout the UK.

Car parks are now a
major area of business
for the structural steet
ndustry, and the
Severfield-Rowen Group
has devefoped expertise
and a proven track
recard i thewr design
and construction

Group Accounts

Power Stations in the UK,
Ireland and overseas
have atways been an
important element of the
Group s demand

Our expenence and
professionalism in
delivenng such projects
enables it to contnue in
it pavotat role in supply
to this growing sector

48

Campany Accounts
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CHAIRMAN'’S
STATEMENT

The Group performed

very well in 2007 with

all of our core businesses

contributing to record results. .

PETER LEVINE CHARIAN

Highhights Group Overview Chauman s Statement Operabonal Review
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Financial Review

Corperate Governance

» BIRMINGHAM HOSPITAL

Birmingham's new 1,200 bed super
hospital 1s being built on the 50 acre
site of the old Queen Ehzabeth
Hospital in Edgbaston and will become
part of the largest healthcare facility
n the UK outside of London.

Covering some 170,000 sqm, the
hospital comprises more than 10,000
tonnes of structural steetwork,
mcluding approximately 700 tonnes
of Fabsec plated beams.

» Severfield-Reeve

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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08 Chairman’s Statement

Introduction — Another Great Year

On behalf of the Board | am dehghted to report that the Group
performed extremely well in 2007 with all of our core businesses
yet agam delivenng record productvity and customer sernice, and
producing record results

In spite of the challenging global financial market condibions
towards the end of the year the financal strength of
Severfield-Rowen combined with increasing demand for the
Group s differentiated services underline our confidence in the
Group s long-term growth prospects

Overview — Further Growth

In 2007 underlying operating profit tbefore amorvsation of
acquired intangible assets of £2 2 milion and the moverment in
valuation of dervative finanaal instruments of £2 3¢ million)
ncreased by 46 6% to a record £42 68 millton (2006 £2912
mithen} on increased revenue of £300 7 million (2006 £2951
mifion) The underlying operating margin increased to 14 2%
{2006 99%) These impressive results were largely due to our
quality sernce level underpanned by a focus on pnme projects

All of our core businesses performed strongly with a focus on high-
margn, pnme projects Accardingly underlying profit before 1ax
was 41 8% hgher at £42 9 million (2006 £30 3 milion} produang
2 39 4% increase in underlying basic eamings per share of 35 74p
(2006 25 64p) The underlying profit before tax margin increased
1o 14 3% (2006 10 3%)

Retained profit after tax was £26 4 miflion (2006 £20 9 million)

The Group s net assets increased to £116 8 million (2006 £66 2
millon) Following the funding of the Fisher Engineenng acquisittont
and the purchase of the Dalton Property we ended the year with
net barrowings of £48 1 million (2006 net funds £38 2 mition}

Woe increased our leading position in the structural steel industry
and are involved 1n many significant projects and developments
We are particiiarly pleased that afl of the Company s core
subsidiartes in 2007, namely Severfield-Reeve Structures, Watson
Steel Structures, Atlas Ward Structures Rowen Structures, Fisher
Engwneermg and Steelcraft Erection Services contributed to our
record results

Heathrow Terminal 5

MNotable among our recent completed profects was Heathrow
Aurports new Termanal 5 which has recewved worldwide acdam
not only for its impressive wisual impact but more fundamentally
for the completion of Hs constructron on time and on budget The
Group should be extremely proud of this achievernent

Highlights Group Overnew

Dnndend — Improved Retumns

Whth the record results announced today and in view of the
strength of our finanaial position, the directors are pleased to
announce a 40 4% increase 1n the full dmidend for the year to

20 Op per share which 1s covered 1 8 tmes by underlying earnings
The final dwadend 1s 13 25p per share (2006 9 25p) payable on
the 16 June 2008 io shareholders on the register on 16 May 2008

Fisher Engmeermg

The acquisition of Fisher Engineering was completed i Ociober
2007 at a total cost of £92 2 milkon of which £36 6 mulkion was
pawd in shares and the balance in cash

Based in Enruskillen Northern Ireland the company has an
establhished track record as a very successful and profitable
fabricator in both the province and Eire and sts wcorporation into
the Group has been speedy and effectve We lock forward to
Fishers making a signifscant contribution te the Group in 2008
and beyond

At the ume of purchase, lan Cochrane, the Managing Director of
Fishers, jomned our man Board A planned upgrade investment
of some £2 5 millon was completed in 2007, pricr to the
acquision and 15 now providing the strategic productvity
wrprovements envisaged

Dalton Anfield Estate

Durning the same peried as the Fisher acquistion the Group
acquered the freehold reversion of Dalton, the Groups
headquarters from certain directors and management for the sum
of £23 5 millon The acquisition has a positve effect and means
Severfield regains control of this valuable extensive headquarters
and fabncation site thereby gmng it both the flexibility in further
development and an increased asset base

Board Changes

Charrmanship

Whith effect fram the dose of the Company s AGM on 30 May
2008 | will step down both as Chairman and Main Board director
of Severfield-Rowen

Having been first Deputy Chairman for a numbers of years, then
Chairman for the last ten years, it s tme to pass on the baton In
all those years 1t has been an honour to be part of the team that
has made Severfield the pre-esmnent force wn our industry It has
furthermore been a privilege to work alongside first the creator of
the modern Severfield lohn Severs and latterly the team that |
have no doubt will take it forward to further prosperity and success
namely Tom Haughey, Peter Emerson and their management
colleagues Shareholders should have every confidence that the
future of Severfield 1s 1IN good hands and | express sincere thanks
to all my colleagues and our employees for their fnendship and
support to me over many years

Chairman s Slatement QOperavonal Review
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3 TESCO, LIVINGSTON

Covering an area of 85,000 sqm, this
new Distribution Centre will serve
Scotland’s 100+ Tesco stores, helping the
Scottish economy as products can be
picked locally and distributed in Scotland

The project comprises 3,750 tonnes of
fabncated steelwork, 40 tonnes of which
are Fabsec bespoke plated beams,

» Atlas Ward

Finanaal Rewview Corporate Governance Group Accounts Compary Accounts
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My replacernent as Chairman is to be Toby Hayward Toby
provides both valuable accounting background being a Chartered
Accountant qualifying with Deloiite and Touche and has very
extensive city expenence For the last 2Yz years he has been with
lefferies International Limited

John Featherstone

Also with effect from the close of the Campany s AGM, John
Featherstone one of aur non-executive directors, will be standing
down | have known John since he joined our Board twenty years
ago as our then sole non executrve and he has provided mvaluable
support throughout that ttrme The Company owes him rauch
grattude and wishes lum and his wife health happiness and a
{engthy and wibrant retirement.

Board Reorganisation

Taking in1o account my departure and that of John Featherstone
the deaision has been taken to rationalise and streamhne the Board
structure.

Accordingly with effect from dose of business of the forthcoming
AGM, Peter Elhson, Bnan Hick, Nigel Pickard and lan Cochrane will
step down as Main Board members but will of course continue as
executive managing directors of their own companies being
respectively Steelcraft Severfield-Reeve, Atlas Ward and Fisher
Engineering | express my and the Board s appreciation of ther
important support to the Main Board and look forward to many
years of continued contnbutions to the Group through a new
Executive Management Commitiee

Highhights Group Overnew

Proposed Board structure post-AGM

Main Board

Toby Hayward Non Executive Chairman
Tom Haughey Chief Executive Officer

Peter Emerson Chief Operatng Officer

Peter Davison Finance Director

Keith Elhott Senior Non Executive Director
Dawid Ridley Non-Executive Director

Geoff Wnght Non Executive Director

Divisional Executive Managing Directors

Peter Ellison Steelcraft Erection Senvices
Brian Hick Severfield-Reeve Structures
MNigel Peckard Atlas Ward Structures

lan Cochrane Fisher Engineering

Employees — Key to Success

The consistent achrevements of the Group continue to reflect
directly on the excellent management and workforce The directors
sincere gratitude is extended to them

Qutiook - 5till Positive

The Group s prospects are very good Our position remains robust
and demand for our services continues to be significant particularly
larger projects, as exemphified by our record order book and as
observed by cther leading construction contractars

We have begun this year well and are confident of further success
In 2008 and beyond, including the Company s expressed objective
of explonng overseas ventures

Peter Levine
Chairman
1998-2008

2 May 2008

Chairman s Statement Operational Review
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Finanaal Review

Corporate Governance

3» WIMBLEDON, LONDON

The mutti-mutlion pound
redevelopment of Wimbledon's famous
Centre Court includes enlarging the
bowl to increase capacty from

13,800 to 15,000 and a new 5,200
sqm, 16 m high retractable roof

The project incorporates 3,900 tonnes
of fabricated steelwork.

The retractable roof i1s to be in
operation for the 2009 Championships.

» Watson Steel

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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OPERATIONAL
REVIEW

An excellent order book

of £455 miillion and a very

high level of future

contract prospects. N

TOM HAUGHEY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Highlights Group Cverview Chairman s Statement Operational Review
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Finaral Review

Cormporate Governance

3» WHITE CITY, LONDON

Situated off Wood Lane, Shepherd's Bush
and close to the BBC headquarters, this
massive centre will be the largest retail
development in Europe. It will house an
atrium for hive events, 15 restaurants,
partang for 2,500 vehicles, 265 shops, a
cinema and other leisure facilities.

In excess of 25,000 tonnes of fabncated
steel are utilised In this project, 5,000
tonnes of which are Fabsec plated beams
with bespoke service openings

» Severfield-Reeve

Group Accounts Comparty Accounts
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The Cornpany continued to make very good progress through
2007, producaing records in outpul, tumover and profitability, and
established the strongest forward order book in s history

Chent satisfaction 15 very high as the focus continues to be on
delivery of value and on-time project execution for al} contracts
large and small

In the closing quarter of 2007 the Group achieved a significant
strategic objective with the acquisinen of Fisher Engineenng
Limited The Company has settfed into the Group exceedingly well
Benefits to the Group include enhanced flexibility better service
offerings and the greater collectwve optumisation of our new scale
and breadth This acquisition consolidates the Group s leading
posiion in terms of service and chent preference throughout the
UK and Ireland

The companies within the Group while autonomous are sciidly
co operating 1o provide “best m industry” programmes service and
value to clients and their progects

Severfield-Reeve Structures

Many notable projects were undertaken by the Company,
including

* Complenon of the Westhekd Centre shopping ¢entre, London

* Conunuing specatist development of oil pipeline carrying racks
on Sakhalin Island Russian Federaton

First ever inner city 1kea store on Queen Victona Road Coventry
* Extension to the Shires shopping centre s Leicester

* Retall leisure and residential centre at Eagles Meadow
Wrexham

Concert hall arts venue and office development with unique
nppling glass facade at King s Place, London

Retall development at the Broadmead shopping complex
n Bristol

Office development using the innovative Br-Steel Care at One
Basinghall Avenue London

New 1 200 bed hospital development at Queen Elizabeth
Medical Centre, Edgbaston Birmingham

* Mixed use retal and residential development at Livingston, near
Edinburgh

Ropernaker mult-storey office block, London

Highlights Group Overview

During the course of 2007 the Company prepared for and
obtained a Gold Award via the British Construction Steef
Association Sustasnability Charter This 1s a milestone achievernent
and 15 [ust the inibal step in the Group s ambitron to generate an
efficient sustainable business model In the same tmie frame BS EM
15O 14001 Enwvironmental and OHSAS 18001 Safety accreditations
were achieved

Further site development for improved logrsucs and enhanced
product outpul were implemented through 2007, ensunng that the
Company strengthens its position as the leading production facility
in Europe.

Watson Steel Structures

The Company again continues to express its versatility and
engineenng expertise through its participation i many high profile
projects, including

* The on tme/in budget completion of Terminal 5 Heathrow

* Termunal extension at Stansted for BAA

* Hackney Academy, London

* The Darwin Centre at the Natural History Museum, London

* Waste to Energy plant, Colnebrook

New projects awarded in 2008 include

* New Museum of Transpor, Glasgow
® Termunal 2 Dublin Aurport
* Extensions to Terminals 3 and 4 at Heathrow Arrport

* The exclusive restdential development at Number 1 Hyde Park,
London

® Cannon Place development, London

In 2G07 the operations at Waison Steel were enhanced with the
commussion of processng equipment and the improvement of site
nfrastructure

The Company was also successiully accredited wath BS EN 150
14001 Enwwonment and OHSAS 18001 Safety awards
demonstrating its ongaing commitment to quality safety and
sustamnabihity

Chawrman s Slaternent Operatcnal Review
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3 VICTORIA SQUARE SHOPPING
CENTRE, BELFAST

Covenring a total site area of 14 acres,
the Victoria Square Shopping Centre,
anchored by the largest House of Fraser
store in the UK, includes an 8 screen
cinema, 90 shop units, 17 restaurants,
residential and leisure space as well as
a 1,000 space underground car park
The focal point is a glass dome, which
stands 45 metres in height and 35
metres in diameter, supported by a
steel truss structure.

The total project consists of 5,300
tonnes of fabricated steelwork

» Fisher Engineenng

Corporate Governance Geoup Accounts Company Accounts
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Atlas Ward Structures

In 2007 Allas Ward dernved productmty benefits from the
sigruficant investments made in 2006

Investment during 2007 1s further strengthening the Company s
posinon in the marketptace and makes it more flexible to compete
across a range of construction sectors

Projects engaged durmng the year mdude

New distnbution centre for Tesco i Livingston, Scodand

Project Storm a new distnbution centre for major supermarket
chain ASDA at Redhouse Interchange Doncaster

New distnbution centre for Tesco in Goole

New drstnbution hub for Sansbury s in Pineham

* New Sansbury s store and adjacent nen food retail units on
Westfield Road, Edinburgh

* Two new teachung blocks at Anmiesland Cellege in Glasgow

* Protogis Park, Wellingbrough the third phase of a distribution
development totalling in excess of 4,000 tonnes of structural
steelwork

* Lymedale Cross, a new speculative development for Helioslough
in Newcastle-under-Lyme

¢ New distnbution centre for Tesco m Donabate Dublin
® New factory and offices for JCB at Uttoxeter

Cabaot Park Plots 9 and 10 a new cross docking distribution
facility based i Bristol

* A new manufactunng facility far Goodman s in Avonmouth

Adlas Ward 1s heavily involved in the development of new
Sustainability strategies and inwatives for itself and other Group
cormpanies

Atlas Ward attained OHSAS 18001 Safety and BS EN 14001 2004
Environment accreditatiens in 2007

Highhghts Group Overview

Fisher Engineering

Fisher Engineenng toined the Group in October 2007 The
integration into Severfield—Rowen has gone exceedingly well

An upgrade investment of some £2 5 million was completed m
2007, pnor to its acquission and 15 now providing the strategic
productivity improvements envisaged

The projects completed or started by Fisher Engineening in 2007,
nclude

* Victona Shopping Centre in Belfast

Irefand s very first lkea Store in Belfast

Centrecor Pharmaceuticat at Cashall Ireland

Dundrum Town Centre n Dublin

Cuinn Group Radsator Factory at Newport

Natignal Conference Centre in Dublin

The Pont Shopping Centre in Dublin

MET Unrversity n Leeds {Feature Building}

Commeraal office block in Threadneedle Street, London
BBC Now in Cardiff

During 2007 Fisher Engineenng achieved Health and Safety
Management accreditaion to I1ISO 18001

Chairman s Statement QOperauonal Review
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Finanoal Review

Carporate Govemance

» 40 HOLBORN VIADUCT, LONDON

This high profile commercial office is
located in central London, providing a
gateway to the City and West End and
offers approximately 16,600 sqm of
office and retail space across eight floors

The project consists of 1,770 tonnes

of fabncated steelwork, mcluding 600
tonnes of Fabsec bespoke beams.

450 tonnes of the steelwork were coated
with mtumescent fire protection paint.

» Rowen

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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Rowen Structures
Rowen Structures ceased the physical production of steelwork in the
summer of 2007 1t (s now carned out at the other Company sites

Rowen Structures continues to contract business an behalf of the
Group with its long-standing clients, providing its wholly retained
project management skills and Group services to many projects
ncluding

* Westfield Shopping Centre in Derby

*® 12 storey office and retail unit at No 3 Praccadilty Manchester for
Canllion Censtruction Led

® Premium office development at 40 Holborn Viaduci Tor Balfour
Beatty Construction Litd

New projects commenced in the pericd include

* Prestigious new headquarters for Audi UK Ltd 1in London

* Preriurn office development {the "LEX™ Buildng) in Queen
Street, London

® 19 storey office development at 30 Crown Place, London

* Regents Place office development s London

® |arge West End office development adjacent to Great Portland
Street tube station

® Premium office and retaill development situated adjacent to
St Paul s Cathedral in central London

Rowen s management and staff wilt relocate to new, bespoke
offices i the same vicimity in June 2008, from where they will
continue to provade a full service to chents

Highhghts Group Overview

Steelcraft Erection Services

The Group s performance tn relaton to project execubion and
customer satisfacbon was again greatly influenced by the high
level of professionalism and dedication prowided by Steelcraft
Erection Seraices

Steeleraft contnues to lead the held in terms of innovation and 15
presently first user of a new bespoke steel erector platform
developed as the optimum current selution for the safer erection
of steelwork.

Severfield—Reeve Projects

The Company continues to prowide first-class services to its dients
and other Group compames in the fult developrment of small to
medium scale projects

Condusion

2007 was a further milestone in the Company s development, both
financially and strategically The acquisiion of Fssher Engineenng
has consolidated the Group s leading position in the UX and
Ireland and our continued fogus on client service has assisted in
obtaining a record order book of some £455 mulkon and
establishing us as preferred supplier on a sigrificant prpeline of
future work

The Group 15 now positionad to derve growing synergy benefits
from the flexibility and scale of its existing operations while
beginning to explore new growth oppoertunities overseas

Tom Haughey
Chief Executve Officer
2 May 2008
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Chatrman s Statement Operatiganal Review
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Finanaat Reviewy

Corporate Governance

» RIVERSIDE BRIDGE, CAMBRIDGE

The Riverside foot and cycle bndge
is part of a programme by
Cambridgeshire County Council to
improve existing footpaths and
cycle ways and links Riverside

with Chesterton.

» Watson Steel

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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FINANCIAL
REVIEW

A very successful year with

revenue, underlying profit before

tax, earnings per share and

dividends reaching record levels.

Very successful acquisition of

Fisher Engineering completed. _—

PETER DAVISON FINANCE DIRECTOR

Highhghis Group Overview Chairman s Statement Operasonal Review
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Finanaal Review

Corporate Govemance

» THREADNEEDLE STREET, LONDON

Located in the City of London, at
the junction of Old Broad Street and
Threadneedle Street, adjacent to the
Bank of England, this commercial
office provides approximately
20,600 sqm of office and retail
space over 10 floors.

The project utilised 2,100 tonnes of
structural steelwork, coated with
mtumescent fire protection paint.

» Fisher Engineering

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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I am debghted to announce that the Group has had anather record
yedr with undertying profit before tax (before amortisation of
acquired intangible assets of £2 2 muffion and the movement in
valuanon of derwative financial instruments of £2 39 mullion} of
£42 95 million and importanty a record order book of £455
mitlion This underhines the financal strength of the Group and its
long-term prospects In a year of significant activity, including the
acquisihon of Fisher Engineenng, this presents an excellent base for
growth i the current year

Revenue of £300 66 million and underlying profit before tax of
£42 95 million have increased 1 9% and 41 8% respectively over
the figures achieved in 2006

Basic earmings per share based on the underlying profit after tax,
increased by 39 39% to 35 74p Consequently, it 1s recommended
that the total dividend for the year 1s increased by 40 35% to 20 Op
per share gving a daidend cover of 18 umes

Retained profit after tax of £26 4 million (2006 €209 millom has
been transferred to reserves

Following the acquisition of Fisher Engineenng and the sigrificant
capital expenditure in the penod we ended the year with net
borrowings of £48 1 mullion

Share Spint

In October 2007 the Company s share capial was subject to a

4 1 share sphit which mncreased the number of shares in issue to
88,607,876 shares of 2 5p each Consequently where previous
years comparative figures are shown in this review they have been
amended, where appropriate, io reflect the share spht

Revenue

Group revenue increased by 19% to a record level of £300 66

miion The relatively small increase in revenue, despite the Fisher

Engineenng acquistion 1In October 2007, reflects the following

dunng the year

* in 2006 revenue increased to £295 08 milhon from £236 72
mitlion v 2005, reflecing the Group s approach towards its
optimum autput levels In 2007 revenue increased only
marginally despite continuing high capacity utihsation due to a
change In work mix which in turn generated significantty higher
marging

Highlights Group Overview

* Dunng 2007 there was a lower level of externally sousced
products and sennces which generate incremental revenue in
addition to the revenue generated by steel Examples ndude
decking, cladding and starcases, ete

® Production at the Group s facifity at Rewen Structures Limited in
MNottinghamshire ceased in July 2007 wath the fabncaticn being
carned out at other mare efficent Group companies thus
generating higher margins

® The Group continues to follow 1ts strategic objective of
increasing its own mn-house capabidities to prowvide chent services,
eg Fabsec beams, intumescent paint and staircases

* Af 31 December 2007 stock/work in progress was £14 60
mition hugher than at the end of 2006 reflecting the timing of
project valuations and thus producing a lower level of revenue.

Operating Profit

The Group's underfying operating profit increased by 46 6% to

£42 68 million We are particularly pleased that undertying operating
margins, expressed as a percentage of revenue, have continued to
increase significantly to 14 20% from the 9 87% achieved in 2006

These results continue to incorporate the Groups wo associated
compames, Kennedy Watts Partnership Limmted and Fabsec Limited
of which the Group owns 25 1% and 25% respectively The
Group s operating profit for the year includes its share of these two
companies’ results which amounted to a net profit of £58 000
(2006 £10 000}

Charman s Statement Qperatanal Review
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* Undertying 1s before amortisation of acquired mtangible assets of £2 2 mitlion and the
movermnent in valuation of dervative financial mstruments of £2 39 mallon
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Finance Costs

MNet interest recevable for the Group amounted to £266 000
(2006 £1,168,000) The reduction reflects the interest payable on
the borrowings taken out to help fund the acquisiion of Fisher
Engmeening in October

Profit before Tax

The table below prowides a summary of the profit before tax

2007 2006
£000 £000
Underhying profit belore tax —
cantinuing operaiions 42930 30286
Excludes non-underlying stems (see below)
Nen undertyng stems (4,590} -

See section below for explanation

Profit before tax — continuing operations 38,360 30286

The underlying profit before tax has increased to £42 95 miltion,
an increase of 41 8% over the previous year Margns, at this
level, expressed as a percentage of revenue mcreased to 14 29%
(2006 10 26%)

Non-Underlying Items

Non-undertying items are mcluded within the “sther items” column
of the Consolidated tncome Statement and amount to £4 59
million {2006 NI which relate to

* Amortisation of acquired intangibles — £2 2 milhon (2006 Nil}

* Movement in forward contract vatuations — £2 39 million {2006
Nt} The Group particularly through Fisher Engineenng 1s
increasingly selling in to the euro zone (prinapally Ere} and
{ocks 1n the contract profit at the time of accepting this work.
Due to the weakening of sterling against the euro between the
date when the forward exchange contracis were put in place
dunng the year and the year end a negative far value has ansen
on these contracts 1AS 39 requires the mavement in the far
value to be included as a charge i the Consolidated Income
Statement with an associated hability in the balance sheet

Taxation

The tax charge of £1193 million represents an effective tax rate of
31 09% compared with 30 92% in the previous year The rate 15
slightly higher than the prevailing rate due to the adjustments macde
n respect of disallowable expenditure ncurred dunng the year

Highlights Group Overview

Duning 2007 proposed amendments to the Industnal Buildings
Allowance regime were announced Due to the fact that these
amendments were not substantively enacted as at 31 December
2007, therr effects have not been reflected within the Group's
results

The directors have esumated that should these amendments be
substantvely enacted dunng the year ending 31 December 2008
the deferred tax hability held in the consalidated balance sheet
would increase by £6 5 milhion with a corresponding charge to the
consolidated income statement.

Earmings per Share

Underhang basic earmings per share was at a record level of
35 74p, an increase of 39 39% over the previous year This
calculation 15 based on the underlying profit after tax of £29 74
muallion and 83,218,835 shares, being the weighted average
number of shares in 1ssue during the year

Basic earnings per share, based on profit after tax after non
undertying items 1s 31 77p {2006 25 64pt

Underiying diluted eamings per share 1s 35 70p Ths calcufaion 1s
based on the underlying profit after tax of £29 74 million and

B3 297638 shares being the weighted average number of shares
in issue, allowng for contingent shares under a share based
payments schermne

Diluted earmings per share based on profit after tax after non-
undertying itemns, 1s 31 73p {2006 25 64p)

Dividend

The Board will be recommending a final dwvidend of 13 25p per
share (2006 9 25p) at the Company s Annual General Meeting on
30 May 2008, bnnging the total dwvidend for the year to 20 Op per
share This total drndend represents a 40 35% increase over the
lotal dwidend of 14 25p per share paid for 2006 This is in ine with
the underlying basic earmings per share increase and mantains the
total dnadend cover at 1 8 times these eamings a level at which
the Board remains comfortable and at which it remains confident
of aintaining i the future

The final dwidend wall be pa:d on 16 June 2008 to shareholders
on the register on 16 May 2008 The ex dwidend date will be
14 May 2008

Chaman s Staternent Operatonal Review
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» EAGLES MEADOW, WREXHAM

Located in the centre of Wrexham

this new 400,000 sqft open mall shopping
centre will provide a natural extension to
the existing town centre Eagles Meadow
has been designed as a truly mixed-use
development incorporating retail, leisure
and residential uses

The development comprises more than
7,100 tonnes of structural steelwork, of
which approximately half 1s coated with
intumescent fire protection paint.

» Severfield-Reeve

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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Acquisttions

The Company made two acquisiions in the year for a total
consideration of almost £116 mullion as follows

* Action Merchants Limited
Acticn Merchants Limited 1s the non-trading holding company
of Fisher Engineenng Ltd, a leading steel fabncatton company
based in Enniskillen in Northern Ireland The total consideration
amounted to £92 2 rillion tncluding £2 2 mdhon costs), of
which £36 6 million was satisfied by theissue of 1 750,000
ordinary shares of 10p each at £20 89 per share, with the
balance paid iy cash

The Income Statement incorporates the result from 8 October
2007, the date of the acquisiion of the Acuon Merchants
Limited Group

Goadwill ansing on the acquisiion amounted before allocation
of imangibles, inmally to £76 milion A valuation of any
dentfiable intangible assets of Acton Merchants Limited
included in this figure has been carned out to identify and
estimate the fair value and estimated useful lves of these
intangible assets as required under IFRS 3 These mtangible
assets have been valued ar approximately £39 million gross of
the asscaiated deferred tax labibty of £10 92 mullion and are
included 1n the Balance Sheet under "Other Intangible Assets”
Goodwill wll be subject to an annual imparment review as
required under IFRS 3

Fisher Engineening has been integrated into the Group very
satsfactonly and the results for the three maonth penod of
ownership are both very good and encouraging for the future.

» Dalton Asrfield Estate Lumted (DAEL)
DAEL owned the long leasehold utle to the Groups
headquarters and the freehold tile to over half of Severfield—
Reeve Structures Limited s fabncation facility, both at Dalton
Aurfield Industnal Estate m North Yorkshire, for which it was paid
a rent of approximately £1 6 million per annum The Group
acquired the freehold reversion of this faclity from certain
directars and management to regain Severfigld— Rowen s control
of this valuable and extensve neadquarters and fabrication site
The tetal consideraton armounted to £23 5 millon and was
concluded on 9 Qctober 2007

The transaction has been ncluded in the accounts as the
acquisition of land and buldings

Highhghts Group Overview

Balance Sheet

The Group s Balance Sheet continues to strengthen with
shareholders funds increasing by £50 60 mullion to £116 83
million This equates to a total equity value per share at

31 December 2007 of 131 8p, compared with 67 6p at the end
of 2006

The Group s Balance Sheet now has property, plant and equipment
totalhng £7% 42 millon Deprecaton charged n the year
amounted to £3 93 millon We continue to invest hieawvly in our
business with capital expenditure in the year of £33 68 million
made up as follows
» Land and buildings at Dalton, North Yorkshire,

as part of DAEL acquisiuon £23 5 mithon

® {and and extension of production fachties at Dalton  £4 O million
# Land and improvements to production facilities at

Watson Steel Structures facility at Bolton £2 0 midlion
® Improvements lo production faalities at

Adtlas Ward Structures facltty in North Yorkshire £0 7 mellion
* Mobde cranes for use an sites £% 4 million
* Motor vehicdles/vans £12 million

Expenditure 1n 2008 15 budgeted to be appraximately £4 million

The value of goodwilf on the Balance Sheet of £54 71 milhon 15
made up primanly as fallows

* Acquisition of Action Merchants Limited (Fisher Engineenng) i
2007 — £4798 million The goodwll 1s subject to an annual
impairment review under [FRS 3 Given the excellent
performance of the company since acquisiton No IMpalrment
existed at 31 Decemmber 2007

Acquisitron of the Atlas Ward Group of Compames in 2005 —
£6 6 million Subject to an annual impairment review under
IFRS 3 Given the excellent performance of Atlas Ward 1n the
year no impatrment existed at 31 December 2007

Other intangible assets on the Balance Sheet, amounting to £39 04
million represents the capitabsation of the Group s costs n the
development of a pedestal mounted powered work platform for
use on sites In the erection of steel which 1s now being used on
sites in London of £2 24 million and the gross value of the
ntangitle assets ansing on the Fisher acquisition, after amortisation
in the year of £2 2 rilion, of £36 80 million

Charman s Slatement Operananal Review
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» BRIDGE ACADEMY, HACKNEY

Mace Plus 1s delivering this much needed academy
n Hackney, providing new opportunities and
facilities for 1,150 11-18 year olds in East London.

The six storey horseshoe shaped educational facility
will indude a 450 seat performance theatre and
dance studto as well as an outdoor amphitheatre
which will be built above the ground floor car park.
A separate sports hall wall be built, up to half its
depth below ground, and will incorporate a sports
pitch on its roof

The project comprises 1,100 tonnes of fabricated
steelwork.

» Watson Steel

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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Unlike the rest of the Group Atlas Ward has a defined benefit
pension scheme which, although closed to new members had an
1AS 19 defiat of £7 29 mullion as at 31 December 2006 At

31 December 2007 largely as a result of the contnbuticns pard
over dunng the year, the deficit decreased shghtly to £6 75 million
and is shown as a hability i the Group Balance Sheel, with the
remaiming movemnent going through the Statement of Recogmised
Incame and Expense as required under IFRS

The provision made in the accounts to 31 December 2006 of £2 6
million in respect of an alleged ieak to a roof of a contract camed
out by Atlas Ward Structures Limited has been under regular
rewiew dunng the year by the directors Although the case went to
adiudication ne real progress was made with no further indication
aof the bkely outcorme Consequently, it was decided that the
provision should rematn in place

Cash Flow

Management of the Group's cash has always been of pnime
importance to the Board and this remains the case with cash being
nghty controlled Dunng the year a significant amount of
borrowings were taken out to fund the acquisitions in October of
Action Merchants Lid and DAEL Consequently the Group ended
the year with net borrowings of £48 06 million (2006 positive cash
£38 30 midlon} The Group has a revohving credit facihity of £70
mallion with RBS and National Australla Bank as joint lenders untl
August 2010 The current level of borrowsngs leaves the Group
comfortably within the irmits of its facility

Dunng the year £22 99 mullon was generated from operations

Qutflows of cash during the year included dwidends of €13 06
million corporation tax paid of £9 13 mithon and the purchase
of property, plant and equipmentt, net of sale proceeds of
£3212 milhion

The cash outflow required for the Fisher acqussition after cash
and cash equrvalents acquired amounted to £54 96 milhion,
including costs

Due to the acquisitions the Group ended the year with borrowings
for the ferst ime in many years and gearmg of 41 14% 2006 Nib)

Highhghts Group Ovetview

Treasury

Group treéasury actvities are managed and controlled centrally Risks
1o assets and potential liabiliies to customers, employees and the
public continue to be nsured The Group mamntams its Jow nsk
financial management policy by insuring all signrficant trade debtors

The treasury function seeks to reduce the Group s exposure to any
interest rate foreign exchange and other financial nsks 1o ensure
that adequate, secure and cost effective funding arrangements are
mantained to finance current and planned future actvities and to
invest cash assets safely and profitably

Follawang the acquisiion of Fisher Engineenng 1td and the award to
the Group of a large contract at Dublin Awport, the Group now has
mare exposure to the exchange rate fluctuations between sterling and
the euro In order to maintain the projectad level of profit budgeted
on contracts foreign exchange contracts are taken out to convert the
euros into sterling at the expected date of recerpt. As the exchange
rate between sterkng/euro moved against us between the tme the
foreign exchange contracts were taken out in 2007 and the year end
IAS 39 requires the Company to provide for an accounting and non
cash Flow loss to the Income Statement of £2 39 mulhon which 15
shown as a non-underbying tem under “other tems”™ on the
Statement.

The Group remains commetted to strong financial controls, cash
management and appropnate accounting and treasury policies

Greater detad of the Group s financial instruments 1s given in Note
23 to the financial statements

Summary

The Group has had a very successiul year with revenue underheng
profit before tax earnings per share and divdends per share once
agarn reaching record levels

The acquisiion of Fisher Engineenng Ltd has proven to be very
suceessful with the company fiting into the Group very well

The Group has continued 1o iImprove its atready healthy finangial
posiion which together with its record order bock of £455 mdlion
means it 1s well placed for future growth and cash generation

Peter Davison
Finance Director
2 May 2008

Chairman s Staternent Operaucnal Review
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3 SILKEN HOTEL, LONDON

Located on the intersection of the
Strand and the Aldwych, this new
five-star, Spanish owned haotel
features a ten-storey steel framed
atnum and will include 173 bedrooms,
79 apartments, restaurants, bars and a
rooftop terrace. it is the first UK
venture of the Silken Hotel Group

The project incorporates
approximately 2,550 tonnes of
fabricated structural steetwork

» Rowen

Group Actounts Company Accounts
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» STANSTED ARRIVALS EXTENSION

This £40 million project creates an extra 5,900 sqm
of floor space to the mternational arrivals area of the
terminal, with the expanded inumigration, baggage
and customs halls opening in June 2008 and the
project fully completed by December 2008. The roof
structure, consisting of 22 diagrids (domes), each
weighing 30 tonnes and measuring 18 sqm, was
constructed in a dedicated zone at the arport and
then lifted into place by a 450 tonne crane.

2,000 tonnes of fabricated steelwork, of which
almost 800 tonnes are coated with intumescent fire
protection pamt, are utiised in this project.

» Watson Steel

Group Accounts Company A<counts
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The directors present thew annual report and the audited financral
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

Principal Activity and Business Review

The pnncipal actvity of the Group continues to be the design,
fabnication and erect:on of structural steelwork, specizhst claddings
and ancillary products

The subsidiary and associated undertakings principally affecting the
profits or net assets of the Group i the year are hsted in notes 13
and 15 1o the financial statements

A review of the Group s progress during the year and of its future
prospects 1s contained in the Charman s Statement on pages 6 to
10, the Operational Review on pages 12 to 18 and the Financial
Review on pages 20 to 28

The key financial perfermance indicators of the Group are
presented on page 1 and are discussed further within the Financial
Rewiew on pages 20 to 28

Explanation of the Group s approach to fnancial nsk management
15 given It the treasury section on page 28

The Group 1s also subject to competiar risk, operating in a
compettive market with a focus on ongoing INnovation and price
pressure To reduce this nisk we focus resources on ensunng we
lead the sector In nnovatien and continue to INvest In appropriate
developments in technology and other areas We alsa actively
challenge margins when reviewing potennal orders and work hard
to ensure the sourcing of quality labour and matenals at the best
pnce available — the ongoing Steel UK Limited partnership with
Murray Metals Group being an excellent example of this in 2006

The Group benefits from close commercial relationships with a
number of key customers and suppliers Damage to or loss of any
of these relahonships could have a direct and detnmental effect on
the Group s results To manage this nisk Group management
continues to invest significant ime and effort woeking with these
customers and supplers to ensure the Group meets their
respective needs, and continues to develop strong working
refatonships

A review of the Group s performance in the area of health and
safety and its consideranon of environmental and empioyment
policies, 1s given 1n the Corporate Sotial Responsibilty section on
page 39

Results and Dividends

The prolfis of the Group for the year after taxation amounted to
£26 434 000 (2006 £20,921000) details of which are set oul in
the financial statements on page 53

Anintenim dividend of 6 75p net per share (2006 5 00p! was
paid on 26 October 2007 The directars recommend a final
dwidend for the year of 13 25p net per share (2006 9 25p)
payable on 14 June 2008 to sharehaolders on the register on

16 May 2008

Highlights Group Overnew

Fixed Assets

Details of changes in the Group s fixed assets are given in nates 10,
11 12 and 15 to the conselidated financial statements

Directors

The present merbership of the Board s stated on pages 32 and
33 John Severs resigned as a director on 30 June 2007 lan
Cochrane was appointed a director on ¢ October 2007 All of the
other directors served throughout the year

The directors interests in the share capital of the Company are set
aut an page 47 m the Directors Remuneraton Report.

J K Elrott wall retire at the Annual General Meeting i accordance
with the Articles of Association and will offer imself for re elechon

P M Leving {Chairman) bekeves that J K Elhott continues to be
committed to the rele of nen executive director and 1o show
effective performance and consequently supports his nomination

In accordance with the Combined Code 1ssued by the London
Stack Exchange T G Haughey and P J Davison will also retre at the
Annual General Meeting and offer thernselves for re-elecion

Plans for the structure of the Board are descnbed in the Charmans
Statement on page 10

Executive Directors

Tom Haughey 52 was appointed Group Caommercial Director m
February 2002 He graduated from Strathclyde University in 1978
His career until joining the Group was wathin Corus (formerly
Briish SteeD where his last positon was Commeraat Drrector of
Corus Construction and Industrial In Novemnber 2005 he was
appointed Joint Group Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer in July 2007

Peter Emersan, 54, has worked for the past 34 years in the
Specalist Contracting Industry titally in the concrete

contracting sector He (oined Rowen in 1984 as a quantity
surveyor rising to Deputy Managing Drrector in 1996 He was
appointed Group Commercial Director in 1998 and n December
2001 to the key role of Managing Director of Watson Steel
Structures Ltd In July 2607 he was also appointed Chief
Operations Officer for the Group

Peter Davison, 52 graduated from Lancaster University in 1977 and
qualified as a Chartered Accountant m 1980 with KPMG He
ined the Group in 1988 as hinancial controller and company
secretary immediately taking on the financial responsibility of the
Company s flotation on the London Stock Exchange. He was
appointed Group Finance Director in 1990 and has established

and mantained efficient up-to-date systems of control Lo ensure the
smooth running of alt financial aspects of the Group

Peter Ellison 54 joined the Group sn 1993 as Managing Director
of the Group s in-house erection company, Steelcraft Erection
Services Ltd He has spent his working life in the steel erecbon
business and prier to jotning the Group he ran his own erection
company based in the Midlands Since joining Steelcraft he has

Charman s Statement Operatanal Revisw
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built up a company which 1s very tmportant for the success of the
Group with an unnvalled reputation for the efficent and safe
erection of structural steetwork.

Bnan Hick, 49 |oined the Group in 1989 and has had 32 years
expenence in the structural steel mdustry including 8 years
working in the Middle East and Afnca He was appointed Group
Director responsible for internanonal eperatons in 2000 and under
tus gurdance the Group has been able to break into two significant
market areas, both in the UK and overseas, being Power
Generation and Petrochermucal work. He was also appointed
Managing Director of Severfield—Reeve Structure Ltd in July 2007

Nigel Pickard 43 joined the Group in 2005 following the
acquisihion of Atlas Ward He has 27 years experience in the
structural steel industry working both in the UK and overseas
markets In 2000, he was appointed Cperations Director of Atlas
Woard where he took full responsibility for production Apponted as
Managing Drector in 2002 he transformed Atlas Ward s business
turning its substantial losses to profit and laid the foundanons for
further development in the future

lan Cochrane, 38 |oined the Group in 2007 following the
acquision of Fisher Engineenng He has worked at Fisher
Engineering for 20 years starting 10 the drawing office and
progressing to Progect Management He was appointed Project
Durector in January 2004 and Managing Director in October 2007
He has gained a comprehensive understanding of all aspects of the
business and has been involved in many major projects i Ireland
representing a range of market sectors

Non-Executive Directors

Peter Levine, 52 graduated in junsprudence from Tnmty Coltege,
Oxford in 1977 and qualified as a solicitor v 1980 since when he
has specialised in nternauonalfcorporate law He was appointed a
non-executive director and Deputy Chairman of the Company in
1993 becomng Chairman in 1998 He s the Chairman of
Impenal Energy Corporation PLC the ail exploration and
production campany

Keith Eligtt, 65, was appointed a non-executive director of the
Company i Oclober 1998 and was appanted to the role of
Senior Independent Mon Executive Enrector in 2003 He retired in
Juty 1998 from Bechtel the internabional contrachng organisation,
where he was a pariner in Bechtel Corporation and Senior Vice-
President tn charge of petroleumn and chemical business having
worked there for 32 years

lohn Featherstone, 75, has been a non executive director of the
Company since 1988 He is a Chartered Accountant with a
drstuinguished career in the financial management of beth prvate
and quoted companies He now serves as chairman and director of
several private compames

Dawid Rudley, 65, was appainted in June 2002 as a non execubive
director of the Company He previously held the Chairmanstip of
Faithful and Geould, the quantity surveyor and cost management
consultants which forms part of the W S Atkins Group of

Finanazl Review Corporate Governance

companes He has a wealth of experience and contacts within a
number of strategic sectors for the Group induding infrastructure
and transportation

Geoff Wright, 65 was appointed in September 2006 as a non-
executive director of the Company He retired in 2006 from
Hammerson PLC the FT100 Property Developer where he was
Director of Project Management and Construction, having worked
there for 37 years He 1s well known in the property and
constructton industries and was previously President of the
Chartered Instiute of Budding He 15 a non-executive director of
English Partnerships and BRE Trust

Dhrectors and Officers Liability

Directars and Officers hability insurance has been purchased
dunng the year

Agreements with Employees and Significant Agreements

There are no agreements between the Group and sts directors or
employees providing for compensation for loss of office ar
employment that occurs because of a takeover bid

The Group s banking arrangements can be termenated upon a
thange of control of the Group

There are no other significart agreements to which the Group 1s a
party that take effect, alter or temminate upon a change of control of
the Group following a takeover bid providing that the Group s
credit rating 15 marntamned

Significant Shareholdings

As at 25 Apnl 2008, the Company had been nonfied of the
following veting nights to the Company s shares in accordance with
the Dsclosure Rules and Transparency Rules of the LIK Listing
Authanty

2 5p Ordinary shares %
M & G Investment Management 7920 569 B 94
Rathbone Investment Management 4,678329 528
JP Morgan Asset Management 4277673 483
Credd Swisse Asset Management 3,848 860 434
Jupiter Asset Management 3,840 047 433
Legal & General Investment Management 3 BO1 579 429
Barclays Global investors 3006 595 3139

Share Split

On 8 Qctober 2007 the Company s authensed and issued share
capial was sub-dwvided on the basis of 4 new ordinary shares of
2 5p each for each existing ordinary share of 10p each

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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Share Caprtal intention of exerasing this authonty and will only do so at price
levels which they consider to be in the interests of shareholders
after taking account of the Group's overall finanaal position

and which would lead to a beneficial impact on the earnings
Three resolutions are to be proposed at the forthcorning Annual per share of the Company

General Meeting relaung lo or concerning Share Capital

The Company has a stngle class of share capital which following
the share split 1s now divided into ordsnary shares of 2 5p each

) The directors are requesting that ther authonty te allot shares Rights Attaching to Shares
be renewed The maximum amount of relevant secunties that The nghts attaching to the erdinary shares are defined in the
may be allotted pursuant to the authonity 1s £731015in Comnpany s Articles of Assocation The Articles of Asseation may

nominal value (29,240,599 shares) representing approximately be changed with the agreement of shareholders A shareholder
33% of the Company s total share capital m ssue as at 25 April whose name appears on the Company s Register of members can

2008 being the latest practical date prior to the date of the choose whether his shares are evidenced by share certificates {ie
Notice of Meeting The Board has no present intention of in certificated form) or held in electrontc G e uncertificated) form 10
exercisng thus authonty, which will expire at the end of the CREST (the electroric settlernent systerm m the UK)

2009 Annual General Meeting or on 29 August 2009

Subject to any restrictions below shareholders may attend an
whichever is the earlier ! Y Y Y

general meeting of the Company arkd on a show of hands every
i} The directors power to allot equity secunties conferred by the shareholder {or his representative} who 15 present at a general
Special Resolution of the Company passed on 17 June 2007 meebng has gne vote on each resolution and, on a poll, every
will expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to shareholder {or his representatvel who 1s present has one vote on
be held on 30 May 2008 wunless otherwise vaned revoked or each resolution for every ordinary share of which they are the

renewed Your directors consider 1t desirable that thus power, registered shareholder A resoluticn put to the vote of a general
being 2 hmited disapplication of pre-empuon nghis should be meeung 1s decided on a show of hands unless before, or on the
renewed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting declaration of the result of, a vote on a show of hands, a poll 1s
such authonty to expire at the end of the 2009 Annual dermanded by the chairman of the meeting or by at least two
General Meeting or on 29 August 2009 whichever is the shareholders (or their representatives) present in person and
earlier Apart from nghts issues, open offers and other pre- having the nght to vote, or by any shareholders (or their

emptive issues, the aggregate nominal value of new shares for representatrves) present in person having at least 10% of the total
which power 15 being sought 15 not to exceed £110 760 voting nghts of all shareholders or by any sharehglders (or ther
(4 430,394 shares} representing 5% of the Company s 1ssued representatives) present in person holding ordinary shares in which
share capial The directors have no present intention of an aggregate sum has been pad up of at least one-tenth of the
exercsing this power but should any exercise be contemplated total sum paid up on all erdinary shares

in the future they will have regard to the Investar Protection

i}
Committee guidelines Sharehotders can declare final dividends by passing an ordinary

resolution but the amount of the dividends ¢annot exceed the

{w) The directors are requesting that at the forthcoming Annual amount recommended by the Board The Board can pay interm
General Meeting they are given the authonty o buy by way dvidends on any class of shares of the amounts and on the dates
of market purchases up to 10% of the sssued share capttal of and for the penods they decide the distnbutable profits of the
the Company representing a maximum of 8 860 788 shares Company justity such payment

The pnce to be paid will be no lower than 2 Sp per share and
no more than 5% abaove the average of the rmiddle market
quotations las derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official Lisb for the five business days preceding the day on
which the shares are purchased Purchases would not be made ff the Company 1s wound up the iquidator can with the sanction

Any dividend which has not been cdaimed for twetve years after 1t
became due for payment will be forfeited and will then belong to
the Company unless the directors deade otherwise

in the close period preceding the announcement of the of an extraordinary resolution passed by the sharcholders, dmde
Company s intenm or final results This proposal does not among the shareholders all or any part of the assets of the
mdicate that the Company will purchase shares at any Company and he can value any assets and determine how the
particular ime or price, or imply any opinton on the part of the dmision shall be carried out as between the members or different
directors as to the market or other value of the Company s dlasses of members The hquidalor can also transfer the whole or
shares This autharity will expire at the end of the 2009 Annual any part of the assets to rustees upon any trusts for the benefit of
General Meeting or on 29 August 2009 whichever 1s the Ihe members No shareholders can be compelled 1o accept any
earler 1t1s the present intention of the directors to seek a asset which would give them a hability

similar authornty annually The directors have no prasent

Highkghts Group Overview Chairman s Statsment Operationaf Review
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Voting at General Meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the Company to shareholders in
relation to any general meeting must be delrvered to the
Company whether in wrtten form or in electroruc form not less
than 48 hours before the ime appointed for holding the meeting
or adjourned meseting at which the person named in the
appointment proposes to vote

No shareholder s unless the Board deades otherwise entitied to
attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a general meeting or
to exerase any other nght conferred by being a shareholder if he or
any person with an interest in shares has been sent a notice under
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 {which confers upon public
comparies the power to require information with respect to interests
1 their voting shares) and he or any interested person failed to
supply the Company with the information requested within 14 days
after defvery of that notice The Board may also deade that no
dmdend 1s payabte tn respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered

These restnctions end seven days after receipt by the Company of
a notice of an approved transfer of the shares or all the nformaton
reguired by the relevant section 793 notice, whichever 15 the earher

Transfer of Shares

The Board may refuse to register a transfer of a certificated share
whach 1s not fully pard prowided that the refusal does not prevent
dealings in shares in the Company from taking place on an open
and proper basis The Board may also refuse to register a transfer of
a certificated share unless 4) the instrument of transfer 1s lodged,
duly stamped (f stampable), at the registered office of the
Company or any ather place decided by the Board accompanied
by a certificate for the share which it relates and such other
evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the nght of
the transferor to make the transfer () 15 10 respect of only one dass
of shares and () 1s m favour of not more than four transferees

Transfer of uncertificated shares must be carried out using CREST
and the Board tan refuse o register a transfer of an unceruficated
share in accordance with the regulations governing the operation
of CREST

The Board may decide to suspend the registration of transfers

for up to 30 days a year by dosing the Register of shareholders
The Board cannot suspend the reqistraton of transfers of any
uncertficated shares without gamning censent from CREST

There are no other hiritations on the holding of ordinary shares in
the Company

Finanaal Review Corporate Governance

Vanation of Rights

If at any ume the capital of the Company 1s dvded into different
classes of shares the special rights attaching to any dass may be
varied or revoked either

G} with the wntten consent of the holders of at least 75% in
nommnal value of the issued shares of the dass, or

()} with the sanction of an extraordinary reselution passed at
a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of
the class

The Company can 1ssue new shares and attach any nghts to them
If there »s no restnchon by special nghts attaching 1o existing
shares, rights attaching to new shares can take pnorty over the
nghts of existing shares, or the new shares and the existing shares
are deemed to be vaned {unless the nghts expressly allow it} by a
reduction of pard up capital or if another share of that same class 15
issued and ranks in prenty for payment of dwvidend or in respect
of captal or more favourable voting nights

CREST

The Company s ordinary shares are in CREST, the settlement
system for stocks and shares

Creditor Payment Policy

The Group s current pohcy concerning the payment of its irade
creditors 1s to agree terms and conditions for us transactions with
suppliers and to abide by those terms subject to those terms and
conditions beng met by the supplier At 31 Decemnber 2007 trade
creditors of the Group represented 51 days of purchases (2006
52 days)

Chamable and Political Contnbutions

Dunng the year the Group made chantable donations of £106,000
(2006 £90,000) pnncpally to local charives serving the
communities in which the Group operates

No contributions were made to any polincal parties during the
current or preceding year

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report and
the financial staterents The directors are required lo prepare
accounts for the Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards {"IFRS") and have chosen io prepare the
Company financial staternents in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice CUK GAAPT)

Group Acceunts Company Accounts
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In the case of UK GAAP accounts for the Company the directors
are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Coempany In prepaning these financial statements the directors
are required o

& select sutable accounting polices and then apply them
consistently

@ make judgements and estrmates that are reasonabte and
prudent

& state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed

In the case of IFRS accounts for the Group, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that financiat statements present
fawly for each financal year the Groupss financial posinon, inancal
performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions other events and
conditions in accordance with the definitions and recogmition
cnitena for assets Labiliues income and expenses set out in the
Internatenal Accounting Standards Boards Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

In virtually all arcumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by
compbance with all applicable International Finanaat Reporing
Standards Directors are also required o

& properly select and apply accounting pelicies

e present information, including accounting policies, 1n a manner
that provides relevant, reliable comparable and understandable
nformation

o provide addibonal disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirerments in IFRS 15 insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactrons other events
and conditions an the ently s financial posiion and financial
performance

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any trme the
financial positon of the Company far safeguarding the assets for
1aking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregulanties and for the preparation of a report of the
directors and the directors remuneration report which ¢ormply with
the requirements of the Companies Act 1985

Highlights Group Overview

The directors are respansible for the mawintenance and integnity of
the Company website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and disseminatan of finangal
statements differs from legislation in other junsdictions

Going Concern

Alter making enquines the directors have formed a judgement at
the time of approving the financial statements that there is a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue 0 operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason the directors continue to adopt a going cancern basis in
prepanng the finanaat statements

Auditors

Each director at the date of approval of this Annual Repon,
confirms that

& so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
informatien of which the Company s auditors are unaware, and

e the director has taken all the steps thai he ought to have 1aken
as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company s auditors
are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted, in
accordance with the provisions of 5234 ZA of the Companes
Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their willngness to cantinue
n office gs auditors and a resolution to reappoint them will be
prepasediat the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved Ry the Board of directors and signed on behalf of
Board ~

P’%ﬂ ALY TN

Peter Davison

Secretary

2 May 2008

Dalton Asrfiele Industnal Estate
Dalton Thirsk, North Yarkshere, YO7 3N
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The Groug 15 committed to conknuous ImMprovement in Its
Corporate Social Responsibility activities

in accordance with the ABI reporting guidelines the Board takes
regular account of the significance of soqal, environmental, ethical
and heailth and safety matters to the business of the Group There
1s 10 place a comprehensive nsk management and internal control
process which identfies and assesses the sigmificant nsks to the
Group s short and fong term value ansing from such matters

The Board recognises as Corporate Social Responsibilives to its
shareholders customers and suppliers and 1s committed to good
practice mn all its actnaties

Environment

The Group 15 committed to rrunimising the impact of 115 business
and its processes on the natural environment and the community
at large by complying with all laws, directives and regulations
pertaining 1o its field of operations

It works with the Jocal authonties to ensure it complies with all
permits and authonsabons required to carry out its operahons

Dunng 2007 Severfield=Reeve Structures obtained a gold award wa
the British Construction Stee Association Sustainability Charter This
15 a milestone achrevernent and s the inital step in the Groups
ambshion to generate an efficent sustainable business model

Health and Safety

The Board 15 committed to high standards of health and safety
for all of its ernployees

The Group has established a fully functional health and safety
departmeni which has full responsibility throughout the Group for
developing and mantaining a posiive health and safety culiure for
all aspects of the Group s operations Each operating subsidiary has
a health and safety director who reports to the main Board wia
monthly Health and Safety meebngs

Finanaal Reviews Corporate Governance

The Group operates In a particularly risky working environment
and the Board 15 proud of its good safety record Despite this the
Board will continue to try and improve both health and salety
awareness and 11s safety record throughout the Group

The Group has focused on gaming accreditabion for its Safety,
Health and Enwvironmental System and has achieved certificabon to
OMSAS 18001 and BS EN 1SO 1400t

Further site development for improved logistics and enhanced
product output were mplemented throughout 2007

Employees

Severfield—Rowen aims to attract, retain and motivate the highest
cahbre of emplayees and encourages ther development and
Hutlative.

Employees are regularly informed of matters concerming the
performance and future developments of the Group

The Board takes account of employees interests when making
decisions and suggestions from employees aimed at improving the
Groups perfarmance are welcored

The Group has continued with its established policy of employing
disabled persons where practicable and endeavours to ensure that
they benefit from traiming and career apportunibes in common
with all employees In the event that employees become drsabled
every effort 15 made to ensure that their employrment wath the
Group continues and that appropnate trairing 18 arranged

The Board considers training of employees to be very important
and consequently has established a training department to operate
this particular function

This department 15 manned by expenenced training officers whose
pnme purpose is to provide adequate tramng to new employees
and to update all employees with the contnuing changes in
legtsiation regarding training and health and safety

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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The Board 15 commutted to high standards of corporate
gavernance It 1s accountable to the Company s shareholders for
good corporate governance

This staterent together with the Directors Remuneration Report
on pages 44 to 49 describe how the principles of good
governance, as set out in Section 1 of the FRC Combined Code
updated 10 June 2006 by the London Stock Exchange are applied
te the Company and the Company s compliance with the code
provisions The pnnciples of good governance are sphit into the
following areas directors directors remuneration, accountability
and audit, and relations with shareholders

A Drirectors
The Board

The Company 15 controlled through the Board of Directors wiich
comprises seven executive and five non-executive directars, three
of which ] K Elliott, D P Redley and G H Wnght, are considered as
independent

The Board has a separate chairman and chief executive in line with
the Code provision A2 The Chairman s mainly responsible for the
running of the Board, evaluating tts performance and ensuring that
all directors receve sufficent relevant information on financial,
business and corporate 1ssues pror to meetings The chuef
executive s responsibihties facus on co-ordinating the Company s
business and assessing and implementing Group strategy

J K Elhott 15 the semer independent non executive director and
leads the performance review of the Charman takmg into account
the views of the executive directors

All directors are able to take independent professional adwice in
furtherance of therr duties If necessary

The Board considers that the balance of relevant experience
amongst the vanous Board members enables the Board to exercise
effective leadership and control of the Group It also ensures that
the deasion making process cannot be dominated by any indmwidual
or small group of mdividuals The Board acknowledges that P M
levine and J R Featherstone would be classed as non independent
but recogruses that therr commutment and continuing effectiveness
in the decision making process are nvaluable

Nevertheless on 30 May 2008 at the Company s Annual General
Meeting P M Levine and J R Featherstone will resign as directors of
the Company with immed:ate effect Peter Levine will be replaced as
non-executrve Chairman by Toby Hayward

Highhghts Group Overview

Board Effectrveness

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved forit Itis
responsible for overall Group stralegy acquistion and dwvestment
pabey, approval of majer capital expenditure projects and
consideration of significant financing matters

It momitors the expasure to key business nsks including
environmental and health and safety issues [t reviews the
strategic direction of indnvidual trading subsidianes, codes of
conduct annual budgets, progress towards achhevement of those
budgets and ¢apial expenditure programmes The Board also
considers employee 1ssues and key appointments It also ensures
that all directors receve appropnate traineng on appointment and
then subsequently as appropriate Other specific responsibilities are
dejegated to the Board Commutiees described below Al directors,
n accordance with the Code, will submit themselves for re-election
at least once avery three years The performance of indivdual
directors 15 evaluated annually in conjunction with the
remuneration review

‘The Board generally meets monthly and during the year met ten
bmes A formal agenda for each meeting 1s agreed with the
charrman and 15 arculated in advance of the meeting o allow
time for proper consideration tagether with relevant papers
including key strategic, operational and financial information

Attendance of indmdual directors dunng 2007 at scheduled Board
Meetings and al meetings of the Remuneraton and Audit
Commuttees 15 set out below

Remunerabion Audit

Board Committee  Committee

Total number of meetings held 14] 8 2
P M Levine 9
J L Severs! 5
T G Haughey i0
P A Emerson 10
P 1 Dawison 0
P F Elhson G
B W Hick 10
N Pickard 10
| RS Cochrane? 1

J K Elott 10 8 2

] R Featherstone 10 B8 2

D P Ridley 10 8 2

G H Wnght 10 8 2

' Full attendance at meetings prior to resignation
1 Two meetings hetd followsng appointment

Charman s Statement QOperatonal Review
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Board Committees

The Board has established four standing committees all of which
operate within defined terms of reference

The commuttees estabhshed are the Audit Commutiee, the
Remunerauon Commitlee, the Nomination Commitiee and the
Health and Safety Committee Trading companies are managed by
separate boards of directors Any matters of a matenal nature
concerning the trading companies are reported to the Group
Board of Directors on a monthly basis

With the change in the executive management m 2007 the
change i charmanship in 2008 and the attendant Board
restructunng, the new Board considered iLimpottant to retain a
level of conthinuity in the boardroom and have asked Keith Elliott
to continue 1n hus role as Senior non-executve director for the
immediate future notwithstanding that 2008 will be his 10th year
as a serving director He will continue hes Chairmanship of the
three committees to the Board the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
Through an appraisal of its own performance, the Board of
directors 1s sausfied with the independence of Ketth Elbort as Serior
nan-executwve directar

Audit Commttee

The Audit Committee comprises the non-executive directors, with
the exception of P M Levine and 15 chaired by J K Elliott. The Board
15 satisfied that at least one member of the Audit Commuttee has
relevant financial expenence The Committee has written terms of
reference which will be avalable for inspection at the AGM
Meettngs are held not less than twice a year and additronal
meetngs may be requested by the auditors

The responsibility of the Audit Committee pnngepally falls into four
areas

# To monitor the integrity of the finanoal statements, formal
anapuncerments and Lo review significant financial reporting
judgements

& To review the Company s mternal financial controls

® To make recommendations to the Board in relaton to the
appointment and reroval of the external auditors and to
approve their remuneration and their terms of engagement it
also reviews and mornitors the external auditors ndependence,
objectraty and effectiveness dunng the audit process taking into
account relevant UK professional regulatory requirements This
review includes consideration of the auditors period in office,
therr compensation and scope, quality and cost-effectiveness of
thesr work.

® To consider the need for an internal audit function The
Commutiee agrees with the directors opinion that the Group 1s
not of sufficent size and complexty 1o reguire the need for an
internal audit function

Financal Rewiew Cerporate Governance

It also mncludes & review of the nature of non-audit services
supplied and non audit fee levels relative to the audit fee The
Committee recognises that given ther knowledge of the business
there are often advantages in using the auditors to provide certan
non audit services The Commuttee 15 satisfied that the
independence of the auditors has not been impaired by prowiding
these serwices Detadls of the auditors fees are shown in note 4

on page 62

On invitation, the Finance Director, other executive drrectors and
the auditors attend meetings to assist the Commuttee to fulfil ws
duties The Commuttees can access independent professional advice
If it considers 1t necessary

Remuneration Comnuttee

The Remuneration Committee operates under written terms of
reference The Committee compnses the non-executive directors
wath the exception of P M Levine, and 15 chared by J K Ellott. The
Comrmnittee s report 15 set out on pages 44 to 49

Nomination Committee

The Momination Committee compnses the non-executive directors,
with the exception of # M Levine, and 15 chaired by J K Elkott. The
pnnapal task of the Committee 15 to deal with key appointments to
the Board and related employment matters

The Committee s responsible for proposing candidates for
appowntment to the Beard hawving regard to the balance and
structure of the Board, and will meet as and when required Mo
meetings were held during the year

lan Cochrane was appointed to the Board as part of the acquisiion
of Fisher Engineenng Limited The revew and propesed
appointment of Toby Hayward occurred in 2008

The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee will be
available for inspection at the AGM

All directors are required to seek re-election by the members at the
AGM following their appointment Non executrve directors are not
appointed for a fixed term

The terms and conditons of appointment of non-executive
directors will be avadable for inspection at the AGM
B Directors Remuneration

The Directors Remuneration Report Is set oul on pages 44 (o 49
of the financial statements
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C Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The performance and finangial position of the Company are
provided in the Cperational Review on pages 12 to 18 and the
Financial Review on pages 20 to 2B together with the Chairman
Statement on pages 6 to 10 and the Directors Report on pages 34
to 38 These enable the Board !0 present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company s position and
prospects The directors responsibiities for the financial staternents
are descnibed in the Directors Report on pages 37 and 38

Internal Control

The Board has applied Pnnaple C 2 of the Combined Code and an
ongeing process has been estabhished for identifying, evaluating
and managing the sigruficant nsks faced by the Group which
involves working closety with ndependent nsk management
cansultants This process has been in place for the full financial year
and up to the date of the approval of these financal statements
and 15 regularly reviewed by the Board This process 15 in
accordance with the guidance provided by the Turnbull Report.

The Board has formally acknowledged its overall responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of intemal control it behieves that semor
management within the Group s operating businesses should also
contribute in a substanbal way and this has been built into the
process

There are inherent hmitations m any system of internal contrel and,
accordingly, even the most effective system can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance with respect to the
preparabion of financial nformation and the safeguarding of assets
The system 15 designed to manage rather than elminate the nsk of
fallure to achieve business objectives

In carrying out s review of the effectiveness of internal control in
the Group the Board has taken into consideration the following key
features of the nsk management process and system of internal
control

o Sentor management from all key disciphines and subsidsary
companies within the Group are involved in the process of nsk
assessment in order to identify and assess Group objectives, key
issiies and controls A further review has been performed to
dentify those risks relevant 1o the Group as a whole. This
assessment encompassed all aspects of nsk incuding
operational, complance, financial and strateqic A nisk regester 1s
n place and 15 updated on an engaing basis and a controt
strategy has been determined for each of the significant risks

& The nsk management commuttee, chaired by T G Haughey has
the primary responsibrity to identufy monitor and control the
sigmuftcant nsks to an acceptable level throughout the Group
The committee recerves information on relevant nsk matters
from line management and other sources on a regular basis

@ The Group operates a comprehensive budgeting and financial
reportng system which, as a matter of routine, compares actual
results with budgets Management accounts are prepared for

Highlights Group Overview

each subsidiary company and the Group on a monthly basis
Matertal vanances from budget are thoroughly inveshgated In
addibon a more detailed profitability forecast based on actual
contracts secured 1s regularty prepared to monitor the
performance of the main operasing company of the Group as
the year progresses

Cash flow forecasts are regularly prepared to ensure that the
Group has adequate furds and resources for the foreseeable
future

Standard financial control procedures operate throughout the
Group to ensure the integnty of the Group s finzncial statements

Formal arrangements are 1n place by which staff of the Company
may In confidence raise concerns about possible impropneties in
matters of financial reporting or other matters

Risks are idenufied and appraised through the annual process of
prepanng these budgets

The Board approves the Group s annual budget

® Subsidiary company meetings consider and report on nsk on a
monthly basis as part of the monthly business review process
Thus process is followed to ensure that, as far as possible, the
controls and safeguards are being operated 1n line with
established procedures and standards

@ Safety, Health and Enwtronmental risks are continuafly
monitored at all sites and are reviewed on a monthly basis by
senior management and on a quarterly basis by the Health and
Safety Comnutiee

Steps have been taken to embed internal control and nsk
management into the operations of the business and to deal with
areas of improvernent which come to managements and the
Board s attention This process 15 continuing to ncrease nsk
awareness throughout the Group

D Relations with Shareholders

The Company encourages two way commurncation with both s
instituonal and pnvate investors and attempts to respond quickly
to all quenes recewved verbally or i wiiting

P M Levine T G Haughey, P A Emerson and P ] Dawvison attended
several meetings with analysts instttutional shareholders and retad
investors in the year ended 31 December 2007, either at the time

of the announcements of the Company s intenrn or final results or
dunng wisits to the Company s offices in North Yorkshure

Feedback from these meetings 1s reported to the Board

The Board has sought to use the Annual General Meeting to
commurmcate with private investors and encourages therr
participation

Comphance Statement

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2007 the Company has
been in compliance with the Code provisions set out in Sectign |
of the FRC Comixned Code on Corporate Governance

Chairman s Siatement Operaonal Review
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Finanoal Review

Corpoerate Govemnarice

» THE OVAL, LONDON

Located in South London, The Oval is
home to Surrey County Cricket Club
and seats a capacity crowd of 23,000
In its 150 year history, it has
witnessed some famous victories,
mnduding England’s Ashes win of
2005

The project consists of 2,000 tonnes
of structural steelworle,

3 Severfield-Reeve

Group Accounts Company Accouats
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Introduction

This report has been prepared m accordance with the Directors
Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and Schedule 7A of the
Compantes Act 1985 [t also meets the relevant reguirements of
the Listing Rules of the Financal Services Authonty and descnbes
how the Board has applied the Pnnaples of Good Governance
relating to directors remuneration As required by the regulations
a resolution to approve the report will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company at which time the finanaial
statements will be approved

The regulations require the auditors to report to the Company s
members on the “auditable part” of the Directors Remuneration
Report and to state whether in therr opimion that part of the report
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 (as amended by the Regulations! The report has therefore
been divided inte separate sections for audited and unaudited
information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
Remuneration Commuttee

The Company has an established Remuneration Committee which
1 constituied N accordance with the recommendations of the
Combined Code The Commuttee compnses four non-executive
directors, | K Ellsott ) R Featherstone G H Wnght and D P Ridley
and 15 charred by J K Elhott.

The Remunerations Committee recerved external adwice from New
Bndge Street Consultants LLP INBSO who provided no other
services to the Company

The Remuneration Committee met on eight occasions dunng the
year with full attendance

Mo director plays a part in any discussion about hits own
remuneration

The terms of reference for the Remuneranon Committee are
available from the Company Secretary

Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Committee s policy 15 lo ensure that the
remuneration packages offered are competitive and designed to
attract, retain and motvate executive directors of the nght calibre
Marecver remuneration pehicy is designed to align closely the
remuneration of the directors with the goals of the Company and
its shareholders Growth in executive remuneraton 15 weighted to
match grawth in Group profitability, complexity of the role and
contribubion te shareholder value creation

The remuneration of non-executive directors s considered by the
executrve directors and reflects the time that they commut to the
Company Non executive directors cannot participate in any of the
Company s share optign schemes the Share Matchung Plan or the
Performance Share Plan and are not eligible to jon the Company s
pension scheme,

Highhghts Group Overview

The major elements of the remuneration package for the executive
directors are

@ Basic annual salary and benefits
& Annual bonus payments

® A Performance Share Plan (PSP}
& Pensions

It 1s not intended to grant further awards under previous legacy
plans including the Share Matching Plan (SMP) the share option
schieme or the deferred bonus plan

Developments in 2007

2007 was a transiion year for the Company In many respects
Results n 2006 were outstanding with pre-tax profit exceeding
budget by 42% and revenue up by 25% The growth continued
in 2007 resulting 1n a strong share pnce, enhanced dividend
payments and the Company s entry to the FTSE 250 At the same
time, Managing Director John Severs announced his retirement as
Chief Executive Officer stepping down from the Board wn June
2007 A new executive management team took over on 1 July
2007 Tom Haughey and Peter Emerson were appointed Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer respectively

The Cempany retained John Severs at a cost of £250,000

per annum from 1 July 2007 as a sen:or adwiser to the business
under a three-year agreement thereby continuing to have access to
his umique knowledge and innovation n structural fabnecabon and
erection and his wide-rangmg centacts in the industry

Basic Salary

The level of basic annual salary and benefits 15 determened by the
Commuttee taking into account the performance of the indvidual
and informavon fram independent sources on salary levels for
sumular jobs in comparable companies The comparator compantes
are chosen having regard to size industry sector and the relative
complexity of the business In addition, pay settfements in the
workforce generally are taken inte account

Rigorous remuneration comparator surveys have been performed
with [he assistance of the executive compensation consultants
NBSC who have undertaken all our recent surveys and assisted
the Company with the design of executive compensaton plans
The surveys are updated as appropnate in changing market
conditions and taking into account ather relevant factors such as
the Company s entry during 2007 into the FTSE 250

Annual base salanies for all the executive directors were set a1 the
start of 2007 following cur normal approach involving assessment
agawnst prevaiing rates through our comparator surveys and
assessment of the value of individual contnibution to Cormpany
performance In July 2007 attendant with the changes to the
executive management team and the reakgnment of roles and
responsibiliies further base salary adjustments were implemented,
also following the same guidelnes and policy The revised salaries
were desclosed i our circular to shareholders in advance of an
EGM on 5 October 2007 attendant with the agenda iterm for that
EGM to replace the SMP with the PSP

Charman s Statemer Operabonal Review
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Details of the salanes paid in 2007 are set out in the table of
directors emoluments 1t1s the Commuttees intention to mantain
base salaries at this level in 2008 making only a 3% cost of Iving
increment.

Annual Bonus Payments

Annual bonus awards to executive directors are governed by the
bonus plan introduced in 2003 Under this plan bonus awards
correlate with underlying profit before tax actweved in the previous
year The plan contains both a lower profit threshold below which no
bonuses are payable and a maxmum bonus it as a percentage of
the Indmidual s base salary No bonus awards are payable in years
when profit before tax achuieved 15 below 95% of budget Bonus
awards for years when profit was eamed at !00% of budget could fall
between 50% and 100% of base salary for the Chief Executve and
between 10% and 40% for other directors Awards when profit
achieved 15 120% of budget or better and can be between 100% and
150% of base salary for the Chief Executive and between 40% and
75% for other directors Awards are interpolated hinearly between the
three levels of 95% 1009 and 120% Setting of bonuses s at the
discretion of the Remuneraton Commitiee taking into account our
assessment of contnbution to finanaal results, prevailing market
conditiens budget performance in difficult market condions being
better rewarded than in a sellers market, and both indmdual and
collectve cantnbution to the smplernentaton of strategic inatves
which we anticipate will deliver profits i future years

The Remuneration Committee apphed the bonus plan guidelines
dunng 2007 based on perforrmance in 2006 and subsequenidy and
incorporated its pidgement on contributory and circumstantial
factors including non-finanaal KPIs such as Health and Safety and
other Corporate Social Responsibiliy metncs The guidelines wil
continue to be applied consistently in 2008 and n future years in
accordance with our policy to align the executve directors
remuneration with the Group performance

2006 was an outstanding year with pre-tax profit exceeding
budget by 42 8% After considenng a range of other factors as well
as profit, the Remunerauan Committee deterrmined that bonus
awards in 2007 based on 2006 performance should be at the top
end of the ranges specified above.

A supplementary completion bonus of £1 6 millon was pad to
John Severs at the discretion of the Remuneraton Comrmittee at
the time of his retrement in June 2007 in effect, the completion
bonus constituted an addinanal one year s remuneration at the
2007 base salary and bonus level plus an allowance equivalent to
the Company s pension contnbubon This was evaluated based on
his length of service and his outstanding contribution ta the
business and to the enhancement of shareholder value parucularly
over the past five years where, as shown on the chart on page 46,
the level of shareholder return has been over 800% Also it was
noted that unlike other executive directors John Severs had not
parnaipated in any executive long term incentive arrangernents on
a voluntary basis Furthermore, there was no contractual-based
paymenis In connection with his departure Taking all of these
facters inte account, the Commitiee viewed this addibonal bonus
as apprepriate notwithstanding that this :s recogrused as being
unusual by market standards

Financoat Review Corporate Governangce

Details of the bonuses paid in 2007 are set out in the table of
directors emoluments

The bonus payments are not pensionable

Performance Share Plan

Agamnst 2 background of the Board changes in 2007 the
Remuneration Commuttee undertook a review of executive
remunerabion arrangements with particular focus on long term
ncentives

The Company has, since 2004 operated a bonus-inked Share
Matching Plan as the sole type of long-term incentve for us senior
executive directars In addimon to the SMP, the executives had
been involved in a related party transaction with the Company
through a sale and leaseback arrangernent relating to some land at
the Company s pncipal site at Dalton i North Yorkshire At the
EGM on 5 October 2007 the shareholders approved the
repurchase of the property by the Company thus obviating the
linkage between certain executive directors and the property
awnership 2nd the attendant lock in mcentive of that arangernent.

Having reviewed the effectiveness of the SMP, the Committee
conduded that executives will be better motvated and rewarded
under a stand alone long-term ncentive arrangement, a
Performance Share Plan (PSP) which 1s not influenced by annual
bonus levels and which 15 not linked to cash bonus investment, but
where the focus 1s on contnusng the strong profit growth in the
future from the all-ime hugh positon of today

The policy under the PSP 15 summansed below

& inimally partcipation will be limited to the seven executive
directors

® The normal maximum hmit for the value of shares comprising
an award will be 150% of salary in any year This may be
exceeded in exceptional crcumnstances

& The first awards were made following 2pproval the EGM on
5 October 2007 al the maximum level, recognising the need to
lock 10 and incentwvise the new managernent team Un
antapation of the new plan, executives had not participated In
the SMPn 2007}

& Awards to seruor executives will vest no sooner than three years
after grant

For awards made in 2007 vesting will be deternuned by the
achuevernent of underlying earmings per share targets set over a three-
year performance peried using EPS at the end of 2006 as a base
paint (there will be no faclity to retest the performance condibor)
Twenty-five per cent of an award will vest if underlying EPS growth 15
equal to RPH18% over three years All of the award will vest for
growth of RPl+45% over three years In seting these targets the
Remuneration Committee was cognzant of the exceptional recent
eamings growth, from wherse these growth targets will be measured
as well as uncertainty in the longer term outlaok 1N construction
industry Nevertheless, it 15 recogrised that the EPS growth rate s
amongst the most challenging in the FTSE 250 for a plan of this type

Group Accaunts Company Accourts
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Directors’ Remuneration Report «nunued

EPS was chosen as a performance condition as improving
profitabiity 15 the key finangal performance indicator Using EPS
provides better alignment of interest between executves and
shareholders as profit s calculated on a per share basis

The vaiue of dwvidends paid over the vesting perod will be
ralled up and paid out In shares or cash to the extent shares
ulumately vest

It 15 antispated that a similar policy will be adopted under the PSP
n 2008 {at the ime of wnling the grant levels and performance
condingns have not been finabised)

Share Options

There were no outstandmng share options at 31 December 2007
Mo eptions were granted in 2007 1t is the Committee s intent that
the PSP supersedes the granting of optrons Options may be
granted in future years in special crcumstances at the discretion of
the Comrittee

Shareholding Guideline

A policy was mtroduced in 2004 whereby executive directors will
be required to retain shares acquired as matching awards under
the SMP until such time they have built up a holding of such
shares equivalent in market value {at the date of vesting) to the
executives base salary Thereafter, the executive directors wilf be
under a continuing obhgation o maintain at least such a holding
Thus requirement wil be carmed forward to the aggregate of
awards vesting under the SMP and the PSP The requirement

underscores the Commitiee s policy to align executive director
remuneraton and shareholder interests

Pensions

The Group contributes to each executive director s money
purchase pension fund Contribution rate for each directoris
£50,000 pa plus 7% of base salary resuiting tn contribution levels
1 the range of 15%—36% of base salary

Service Contracts

The serwnce contracts of executive directors run on a roling basis
and are no fonger than 12 manths duration Notice penods of
12 manths are required to be given by all parties

Details of the contracts of each director, induding the date,
unexpued term and any payrment obligations on early termination,
are available from the Company Secretary and at the Annual
General Meeting

Performance Graph

The tollowing graph shows the Company s performance measured
by total sharehoider return compared with the performance of the
FTSE Small Cap Index It s based on the change i the value of a
£100 investment made on 31 December 2002 over the five year
penod ended 31 December 2007

This index was selected as it represents a broad equity market
index and an apprepriate comparator group of comparies over
the perod

Change m value of a £100 mvestment over 5 years
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Directors’ Interests
The directors and their famihies had the fallowing beneficial mterests in the share capital of the Company
31 December
2006
31 December {or date of
2007 appointment}
2 5p Ordinary 2 5p QOrdinary
Shares Shares
P M Levine 65,680 125,680
T G Haughey 61,336 61,336
P A Emerson 20,272 20,272
P ] Dawvison 62,108 138108
P F Elhson 26,844 26,844
B W Hick 31,232 43,232
N Pickard 5,260 5,260
1R S Cochrane 1,220,584 1220584
J K Elhott 200,000 200,000
1 R Featherstone 127,000 327,000
O P Ridley 4,000 40,000
G Hwrght 4,000 -
Transaclions of ordinary shares since the year end are as follows
Number Price
1 Sales Date of shares per share
J R Featherstane 2 Apnl 2008 125,000 £310
Number Prce
2 Purchases Date of shares per share
T G Haughey 24 January 2008 3877 £2 56
P A Emerson 24 January 2008 17 500 £258
P Dawson 24 January 2008 20 000 £2 56
P F Ellisan 24 January 2008 19,385 £256
B W Hick 24 January 2008 10 000 £2 56
N Pickard 24 January 2008 7754 £2 56
P M Levine 28 January 2008 400 000 £248
D P Ridley 31 January 2008 50 000 £2 61
D P Ridley 2 Apnil 2008 20 000 £3 06

Other than the above transactions there have been no changes in the directors interests between the year end and 25 April 2008

Finanaal Review Corporate Governance
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Aggregate Directors’ Remuneration

The tatal amounts for directors remuneration were as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
Emoluments  — salanes, bonus and taxable benefits 5,249 3044
— fees 224 178
Money purchase pension contnbubions 445 349
598 3sn
Diwrectors’ Emoluments
Detarls of the directors emoluments are as follows
Basic Termination Taxable 2007 2006
salary Fees Bonus payments benefits Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
T G Haughey 328 210 22 560 459
P A Emerson 262 168 22 452 358
P} Dawison pald) 154 21 385 345
P FElison 230 157 4 391 325
B W Hick 170 124 4 298 255
N Pickard 170 124 12 306 267
I R S Cochrane (from 9/10/07) 43 - 1 44 -
J L Severs (untl 30/6/07) 300 900 1600 13 2,813 1025
Non-Executive
P M Levine 75 75 59
J K Elhott 50 50 45
} R Featherstone 33 a3 33
D P Ridley 33 33 33
G H Wright 33 33 8
Aggregate emoluments 1,713 224 1,837 1600 59 5473 3,222

Taxable benefits include the prowsion of company cars {uel for company <ars and private medical insurance

Directors’ Pension Entittfements

The executive directors are members of the Group s money purchase pension schemes Contnibutions paid by the Company in respect of
these schemes i the year are as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000

T G Haughey 73 51
P A Emerson 68 47
P ] Davison 65 47
P F Ellson 66 47
B W Hick 62 44
M Pickard 62 52
I RS Cochrane Grom 9/10/07) 3 —
Y L Severs {unul 30/6/07) 46 61
445 149

Highlights Group Overview Chaiman s Statement Operational Review
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Directors’ Share Cptions
There are no share options outstanding at 31 December 2007 (2006 None?

The market price of the shares at 31 December 2007 was 460p and the range duning the year was 344 75p to 620p

Annual Deferred Bonus Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Severfield—Rowen Pl¢ 1999 Annual Deferred Bonus Share Scheme no deferred share awards (as defined in the
Scheme Rules) were made in 2007

There were no bonus shares cutstanding at 31 December 2007

Share Matchmg Plan

Under the Company s Share Malching Plan the following shares waill vest with the directors, subject to achievement of the relevant
performance critena

Number of Number of Total

Shares vesting Shares vesting Number

in May 2008 n June 2009 of Shares

T G Haughey 20448 15112 35560
P A Emerson 21,692 12092 33784
P Davison 16 732 11184 2796
PF Ellison 21,692 11,184 32,876
B W Hick 16,736 8764 25 500
N Pickard — 8,764 8764
97300 67,100 164 400

The full cost of purchasing the shares to meet the abligations under the scheme was charged to the Income Statement in 2005 and 2006
and amounted in total to £350 000 No further disclosures regarding this share-based payment scheme are provided in the financial
statements as the cost 1s iImmaterial

Performance Share Plan

Under the Company s Performance Share Plan the following awards over shares will vest with the directars on 4 October 2010, subject to
achievement of the performance ¢ritena described on page 45

Number
of Shares
T G Haughey 110944
P A Emerscn 88756
P ) Davison 63,608
PF Elison 73964
B W Hick 5Y772
N Pickard 54,772
440 816
Approval
Thus report was approved by the Board of directors and signed on behalf of the Board
J K Ellsott
Chairman of Remuperabion Committee
2 May 2008
r

(4 1N
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» SCOTTISH WIDOWS, EDINBURGH

This commercial office is located on
Semple Street in Edinburgh and is being
constructed for Scottish Widows
Investment Partnership The 6,000 sqm
Grade A office development is spread
over basement, ground and five upper
floors and includes self-contained

car parking.

The project consists of approximately
2,800 tonnes of structural steelwork,
mcluding almost 1,200 of Fabsec plated
beams, of which the majority was coated
with fire protection pamt.

> Severfield-Reeve
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Severfield-Rowen Plc

We have audited the Group financial staterments of Severfield-Rowen Plc for the
year ended 31 Decermnber 2007 which compnse the Consolidated Income
Staternent, the Consohdated Balance Sheet, the Consalidated Statement of
Recegrused Income and Expense, the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement and the
related notes 1 to 37 These Group finanaal staterents have been prepared
under the accounting polcies set out therein We have also audited the
information i the Directors Remuneration Report that is descriibed as having
been audited

We have reported separately on the parent Company financal statements of
Severfield-Rowen Ple for the year ended 31 December 2007

This report 1s made solely 1o the Company s members as a body n accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Ad 1985 Qur audd work has heen
undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we
are required to state to them in an auditors report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibiity to
anyene other than the Company, and the Company s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors
Remuneration Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted
by the European Union are set out in the statement of directors responsibilities

Qur responsibility rs to audht the Group financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Intematonal Standards on
Audivng (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opiman as to whether the Group financial statements give a
true and fair view whether the Group financial staternents have been properly
prepared in accerdance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation and whether the part of the Drrectors Remuneration Report described
as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 We also repart to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors Report 1s consistent wath the Group financal
statements The information given in the Directors Report includes that specific
information presented n the Chairman s Statement Operatianal Review Financial
Revtew, and Corporate Soctal Responsibility sections that is cross-referred from
the Principal Actmity and Business Rewiew section of the Drectors Report

In addition we report to you I, in our opirton we have not recerved all the
information and explanaticns we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors remuneration and ather transactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the Company s
comphance with the nine prewvisions of the 2006 Combined Code specified for
our review by the Listing Rules of the Finanaial Services Authonty and we report
if 1t does not. We are not required to constder whether the Board s statements on
mternal control cover all nisks and controls or form an opinion on the
effectrveness of the Group s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures

riighhghis Group Overview

Charrman s Slatement

We read the other infermation contained i the annual report as descnbed in the
cantents section and consider whether it 1s consistent wath the audited Group
finanaal statements We consider the implicaions for qur report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material Inconsistencies with the Group
finanoia! statements Our responsibiliies do not extend to any further information
outside the annual report

Basis of audst opmion

We conducted our audit in accordance vath International Standards on Audiing
(UK and freland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit includes
examination on a test basis of ewdence relevant to the amounts and disdlosures
in the Group finanoal statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration
Report to be audited It alsp includes an assessment of the sigruficant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Groups
arcumstances consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain all the nformation and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficent
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial statements and
the part of the Dwectors Remuneration Report to be audited are free from
material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error In
forming our opimon we aiso evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of infermation in the Group financial statements and the part of the Directors
Remuneration Report to be audited

Opinion
In our opwion

® the Group finanaal statements grve a true and fair view n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the Group s affairs as
at 31 Decemnber 2007 and of s profit for the year then ended

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

& the part of the Directors Remuneranon Report dasenbed as having been
audited has been property prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and

@ the information gven i the Directors Report 1s consistent with the Group s
financial staternents ,‘])e b’ ” Ol { 16 ( (p

Deloitte & Touche LLP e out

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Leeds
2 May 2008

Operational Review
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Before
Other Gther
Items Items! Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2006
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Conhtinuing operations
Revenue 3 300 656 — 300656 295,084
Cost of sales (250 936) — (250,936} (261,148}
Gross profit 49720 - 49,720 33,936
Other operating Income 479 - 479 79
Distnbution costs (1 295} — {1,295) (877)
Administrative expenses 16,278} {22000 (8,478) 4030
Share of results of associates 58 — 58 10
Unrealised losses on denvatrve financial contracts - (2390) (2,390 -
Operatng profit 4 42,684 {4 590) 18,094 29118
Investment révenue — interest 6 1405 - 1,405 1,250
Finance casts — interest (1,139} - 1,139 82)
Profit before tax 42950 {4590) 38,360 30 286
Tax 7 3211 1,285 (11,926} (9,365}
Profit for the penod attnbutable to the equity holders of the parent 29739 {3,305} 26,434 20921
Eamings per share ? 9
Basic 35 74p (397p) n7r7p 25 64p
Diluted 35 70p (3 97p) 31 73p 25 64p

grve an indication of the underlymg earmings of the Group

There were no such items in 2006 or previous penods

Finanaat Review

Corporate Governance

The calculation of earmings per share for previous periods has been adjusted to reflect the 4 1 share sptit in October 2007

Group Accounts

Company Accounls

Other items relate to the amortisahon of acquired intangibles and unrealised losses on derrvative contracts Other items have been disclosed separately in order 1o
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006

Note £000 £000

Actuanal profit/foss) on defined benefit pension scheme 35 285 169
Tax on items taken directly to equity 21 (85) 351
Impact of reduction in ax rate on deferred tax on defined benefit penston scheme {134) -

Net gainf{expense) recogrused directly in equity 66 818
Profit for the year from contnuing operations 26,434 20921
Total recognised income and expense for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 26,500 20,103

Highhghts Group Cverview Chairnan s Staterment Qperabonal Review
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2007 2006
Note £000 £000
Assets
MNon-current assets
Goodwill 10 54,712 6,732
Other intangible assets 1" 359,040 1,608
Property plant and equipment 12 79,423 43,602
Interests in associates 15 104 46
173,279 51,988
Current assets
Inventones 16 17931 31333
Trade and other recevables 18 65,614 46,786
Cash and cash equwvalents 5,445 38,304
88,990 88,423
Total assets 262,269 140 411
Liabilites
Current habilines
Trade and other payables 19 57,857 56 966
Financial habilities — borrowings 23 53,504 -
Financial kabilities — derwvative financial instraments 23 2,850 —
Tax habilities 10,394 6125
Obligations under finance leases 22 - 66
124,605 63157
MNon-current liabiiibies
Retirerment benefit obligations 35 6745 7287
Deferred tax hablities 21 11,490 742
Prowisions 20 2,600 3 000
20,835 11 029
Total habilities 145 440 74,186
Net assets 116,829 66,225
Equity
Share capital 25 2,215 2040
Share premium 26 46,152 9770
Other reserves 27 743 139
Retaned earmings \ 28 62,719 54,276
Total equuty \ 116,829 66,225
The financial stat nis were approved by the Board of dectors, )‘\ay 008 andegigned on its behalf by
AN B e
T G Haughey \\(\"\\A/_\ PJ Dawvison
Dwvector Director
Finanaal Review Corporate Governance Group Accaunts Company Accounts
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2007 2006
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating achvities
Cash generated from operations 30 22987 35,458
Interest paid (768) (82)
Tax pad (9,131) (6,340
Net cash from operating actvises 13,088 29 065
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 1,555 920
Interest racened 1,384 1,239
Acqussition of subsidiary including costs 29 {55,641} -
Cash acquired wath subsidiary 29 685 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {33,679} (13 010
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (632) (600
Net cash used in vesting actvites (86,328) (11 451}
Cash flows from finanang activiies
Payment of finance lease iabdives (66} (363)
Borrowings taken out 53,504 -
Dwidends paid {13,057} (9079
Met cash generated from finanaing actmties 40,381 (9447}
Net (decrease)/fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {32,859} 8172
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pencd 38,304 30,132
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 5,445 38,304

Highlights Group Querview Chairman s Staternent Operatonal Review
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Significant accounting pohaes
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International financial Reporting Standards (FRS) The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance wath IFRS adopted for
use i the European Umion and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU
I1AS Requlation

The financial staterents have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis,
except for the revaluation of certain properties and financial instrumenits
The pnncipal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Bass of consohdation

The consolidated financial statements incarporate the financial statements
of the Company and all subsichanes for the financial year ended
31 December 2007

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are
included in the Consohdated tncome Statement from the effective date of
acquisibon or up to the effective date of disposal as appropnate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies used into line with those
used by the Group

All intra Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
elininated on consohdation

Conschdated income statement disclosure

In order to give an indication of the underlying earmings of the Group,
certain items are presented in the middle column of the Consolidated
Income Statement entitled “Other ltems”™ These include

& amortisation of acquired intangibles
o f{ar values on unrealised losses on dervative forward contracts

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries 15 accounted for using the purchase
method The cost of the acquisitton 1s measured at the aggregate of the
far values at the date of exchange of assets given babdlities incurred or
assumed and equity nstruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attnbutable 1o the business
combination The acquiree s identifiable assets, labilihes and contingent
habihties that meet the conditions for recognitton under IFRS 3 are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date

Goodwll ansing on acquisition 15 recognised as an intangible asset and
inibizlly measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business
combmnation over the Group s interest in the nex far value of the
dentifiable assets habilites and contingent habilities recegmised Negative
goodwill ansing on acquisiion 1s recognised immediately in

the Consobdated Income Statement

Investments in assocates

An associate 15 an entty over which the Group 15 10 a position to exercise
significant influence, but not contral or ot control through participation
in the financal and operating policy decisions of the investee Sigruficant
influence 15 the power to participate i the financial and operating policy
deaisions of the investee but s not control or [t control over those
polioes

The results and assets and labihities of associates are incorporated n
these financal statements using the equity method of accountng unless
it meets the exceptions descnbed in 1AS 28 Investments in associates are

Finanaa! Rewview Corporate Gavernance

carned in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acguisition
changes in the Group s share of the net assets of the associate, less any
impairment in the value of ndwdual investments Losses of the
associates in excess of the Group s interest in those associates are not
recognised unless, and only to the extent that, the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations on behall of the associates

Any excess of the cost of acquisison over the Group s share of the fair
values of the iIdennfiable net assets of the associate at the date of
acquisition 1s recogrised as goodwill Any dehciency of the cost of
acquisition below the Group s share of the fair values of the identufiable
net assets of the assooate at the date of acquisiton (e discount on
acquisition} is credited in the Consolidated Income Statement in the
perod of acquisition

The Consohdated Income Statement indudes the Group s share of
assocates profit less losses while the Group s share of the net assets
of the assoaates 1s shown i the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consohdation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisiion over the Group s Interest In the far value of the idenufiable
assets and lizbiities of a subsidiary, assoaate or jointly controlled eniity
at the date of acquisibon Goadwill 15 inimally recognised as an intangible
asset at cost and 1s subsequenty measured at cost less any accumulated
impament losses Goodwill which 15 recognised as an asset 15 reviewed
for impairment at least annually Any tmparment 1s recogrised
immediately as profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

For the purpose of imparment testing goodwill 15 allocated to each of
the Groups cash generating units expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combinanon Cash-generatng units t¢ which goodwall has been
allocated are tested forimpairment annually or more frequently when
there 15 an indication that the umt may be wmparred If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit 15 Jess than the carrying amount of
the unit, the smpairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata an the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit, An smpairment loss recogrised for goodwitl 1s not reversed in a
subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly contrelled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill 1s mcluded s the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill 2nsing on acguisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has
been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested
for impairment at that date Goodwill ansing prior to 1 January §998 of
£1122 000 was taken directly to reserves in the year m which 1t arose
Such goodwill has not been reinstated on the balance sheet

Revenue recognition

Revenue from construction contracts Is recognised in accordance with the
Group s accounting poltcy on construction contracts {see below)

Interest income 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the pnnapal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Dwnndend mcome from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders
nghts to recerve payment have been established

Construction contracts

Profit 1s recogrised on contracts «f the final putcome can be assessed
reliably by mcluding in the tncome statement revenue and related cosi as
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contract actvity progresses Revenue s calculated as that proportion of
the total contract value which costs incurred to date bear to total
expected cosis for that contract Vanations in contract work, daims and
Incentive payments are included in Revenue ta the extent that there is
appropnate certainty that they will be accepted by the ¢ustomer and can
be measured reliably

Where the gutcome of a construchen contract cannot be eshmated
reliably contract revenue 1s recogrised fo the exten: of contract costs
meurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable Contract costs are
recogrused as expenses in the penod i which they are incurred

When it 15 probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss 15 recogrised as an expense immediately

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Amounts payable under operating leases are charged to the income
statement ¢n a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Property plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are
capitahsed i the balance sheet at fair value and depreciated in
accordance wath the Group s accountng policy The caprtal element
of the leasing comritment is mncluded as obligatrons under finance
leases The rentals payable are apporboned between interest which
1s charged to the income statement and capttal, which reduces the
outstanding obhgation

Operating profit

Operating profit 15 stated after charging restructuring costs amortisation
gams or losses arising on the farr value of foreign exchange dervatwve
cantracis and after the share of results of associates but before investment
ncome and finance costs

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operales three defined contribution penston schemes and
costs of these schemes are charged to the income statement in the
penod in which they are incurred

In addiben Atlas Ward acqutred on 31 March 2005 has a defined
benefit scheme which 1s now dosed The liability in respect of this scheme
15 the present value of the defined benefit obhgation at the balance sheet
date, less the fair value of the plan assets together with adjustments for
actuanal gainsflosses

The finance cost of habikties and expecied return of assets are included
within Adminstrative expenses 1n the Consolidated Incorne Statement

The actuanat gainfioss 1 charged through the Consobdated Staternent

of Recognised Income and Expense and 1s made up of the difference between
the expected return on assets and those actually achweved the difference
between the actuanal assumptons for habshoes and actual expenence in the
penod and any changes In the assumpbons used i the valuations.

The penston scheme defiat 1s recognised in full and presented on the face
of the Consokdated Balance Sheet. The assonated defermed tax asset s
recognised within non-current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Chairman s Statement

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxabie profit for the year Taxable
profit differs from net profit as reported in the income Statement because
1t exctudes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductble

in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductble. The Group s hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on
differences between the carmying amounts of assets and habilives in

the financial staternents and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance
sheet habiity method Deferred tax habilsties are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductble temporary differences can be utilised Such
assets and liabilities are not recogrused If the temporary difference anses
from the imihal recogmtion of goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and babidities in

a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated al the tax rates that are expected to apply n
the period when the liabdlity 1s settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax
15 charged of credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to
itens charged or credited directly to equity 1In which case the deferred tax
15 also dealt with In equity

Deferred tax assets anc liabilities are offset when there 15 a legally
enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax habihties
and when they relate 1o Income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle tts current tax assets and
lrabdiies on a net basis

Dividends

Dwdends are recorded in the Group s knancial statements in the penod
it which they are declared appropnately authonsed and no longer at the
discrenon of the Company

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buldings hekd for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purpases, are currently stated at cost in the
balance sheet The Group has a policy of revaluing land and buildings
when matenal differences anse being the far value at the date of
revaluation determined from market based evidence by apprawsal
undertaken by professional valuers fess any subsequent accumulated
deprecaton and subsequent accumuilated mparment lasses Revaluations
are performed with sufficient requlanty such that the carrying amount
does not differ matenally from that which would be deterrmined using farr
values at the balance sheet date
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Any material revaluation increase ansing on the revatuation of such land
and buildings s credited to the properties revaluanon reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluztion decrease for the same asset
previously recognised as an expense 10 which case the increase 15
credited 1o the income statement to the extent of the decrease previousty
charged A decrease in carrying amount ansing on the revaluation of
such land and buildings is charged as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance if any held in the properties revaluation reserve
relating 1o a previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciaton on revalued buildimgs s charged 10 ncome On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property the attnbutable
revaluation surplas remaiming in the properties revaluation reserve is
transferred duectly to retained earmings

Depreciation 1s prowded on other property plant and equipment to wnte
off the cost or revalued amount of each asset over its estimated useful life
at the following rates

Freehold buildings

Plant and machinery

Fodures fithngs and office equipment
Computer eguipment

Motor vehicles

1% strasght {ine

10% straight ine

10% written down value
20% straight ine

25% written down value

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful bves on the same basuis as owned assets or where shorter over the
term of the relevant lease

The gan or loss anising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and 15 recognised in income

Intangibles

The Group recognises intangsble assets at cost less accumulated
amorbsation and impairment losses Acquired wntangible assets arise as a
result of applying IFRS 3 which reguires the separate recogrition of
intangible assets from goodwill on all business combinations from

1 lanuary 2004

Intangible assets are amorhised on a straght-ine over thewr useful
economic lives as follows
Amortisatron penod

Customer relationships 10 years
Brands 25 years
Know how 10 years
Order book 18 months

Internally generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research actmines is recogrised as an expense in the
period i which it s incurred

An intemally generated ntangible asset ansing from the Groups
development 15 recogrused only if all of the following conditions are met

& an asset 15 created that can be identfied (such as software and new
processest

& it 15 probable that the asset created will generate future economic
benefits and

& the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Financial Rewvtew Corporale Governance

Internally generated intangtble assets are amortised on a straight ine
basis over thewr useful lives Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recogrused development expenditure 15 recogrised as an
expense in the penod in which it 15 incurred

Impairment of tangible and mtangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and mntangible assets to determme whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such
indication exists the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estmated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss Gf any) Where the asset
does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs An intangible asset with an indefinite useful ife
15 tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an indicatien that
the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and

value in use In assessing value in use the esumated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the bme value of money and the
nsks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset for cash-generating uni 1s
estmated to be less than s carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unith is reduced to Its recoverable amount An
impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately unless

the relevant asset 1s carmed at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset {or cash-generating umib 1s increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no imparrment foss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating
urut) In prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recogrised as
income immediately unless the relevant asset s camied at a revalued
amounl, In which case the reversal of the imparment loss is treated as a
revaluation ncrease

Inventones

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
comprises direct materials and where applicable, direct labour costs and
those overheads that have been incurred in bringmng the mventones to
thesr present location and condmon Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estmated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in marketing, selling and distnbution

Financial instruments

Financial assets and finanaal kabilities are recognised on the Groups
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the insirument.

Trade recevables

Trade recewvables are classified as loans and recervables and therefore
measured at amortised cost usng the effeciive interest method
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fnvestiments
Fixed asset nvestments are shown at cost dess provision for impairment

Current assel investments are stated ax the lower of cost and net
realisable value

Cash and cash equrvalents

Cash and cash equwalents compnse cash in hand and demand deposits,
and other short-term highly iquid investments that are readily convertible
ta a known amount of cash and are subect to an insignificant nsk of
changes in value,

Bank borrowmngs

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
receved, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges, including prermiums
payable on setlement or redemption and direct issue costs are accounted
for in the Income statement using the effectrve Interest method and are
added to the cammying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are
not settled n the penod in which they arse,

Trade payables

Trade payables are mubally measured at far value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Equity instruments

Equrty instriements 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
receved net of direct issue costs

Share-based payment transactions

The Group issues equity-setiled share-based payments These share-
based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant based on
the Group s estimate of shares that will eventually vest The fair value
determuned 1s then expensed m the Consoldated Income Statement on a
strasght-line basis over the vesting perniod, with a corresponding increase
in equity The fawr value of the shares is measured by use of the
Black~5choles pricing model

Prowvisions

Provisions are recogrised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and # 1s probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the directors best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhgation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the
effect 1s matenal

Dermvative financal instnsments

The Group enters nto a vanety of denvatve financial instruments to
manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate nsk,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
foreign currency options Further detatls of dervative finanaal
instruments are disclosed in note 23 to the financal statements

Denvattves are imbally recogrised at far value at the date a denvative
contract 15 entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their far
value at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss s recognised
n profit or loss

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertamty
Critical judgements in applying the Group s accounting pohaes
In the process of applying the Group s accounting policies which are
descnbed n note 1, management has made the following judgements
Highhghts Group Overview Charman s Slaterment

that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
finanaal statements {apart from those invohang estimatians, which are
dealt wath befow)

Key sources of esumation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerming the future, and other key sources of
estmation uncertamnty at the balance sheet date, that have a sigmificant
nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and habiliies wathin the next finanaal year are also discussed below

Revenue and margin recogntion

The Group s revenue recognition and margm recognihon are central to
the way the Group values the work it has carmed out In each finanaal
year These polictes require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of
lang term construction contracts which require assessments and
judgements ta be made on recovery of pre-contract costs changes in
work scopes contract programmes and maintenance liabihties

Recoverabity of mtemally generated intangible asset

Duning the year management considered the recoverability of its
internally generated mtangible asset which 1s included in its balance sheet
at £2,240,000 The project 1s progressing in a very satisfactory manner
and customer reacban has given management assurance over their
estimate of anticipated revenues from the project. Management 1s very
confident that the carrying armount of the asset will be recovered in full
This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments made n future
penods if future market actvity ndicates that such adjustrments are
appropnate

Retirement benefit obligations

Details of the Group s defined pension scheme are set out in note 35 The
scheme has been valued 1n accordance with IAS 19 "Employee Benefits”
At 31 December 2007 the defined benefit obhigation recogrused on the
Group s balance sheet was £6,745 000 The benefit obligation 1s calculated
usng a number of assumptions including increases in pension benefits,
mortality rates and inflason and the future nvestment returns from the
schemes assets The present value of the benefit obligations s calculated
by discounting the benefit obligatien using market rates on relevant AA
corporate bonds at the balance shect date

The scheme s assets are valued a1 market rates at the balance sheet date.
Effects of changes in the actuarial assumptions underlying the benefit
abligatton discount rates and the difference between expected and
actual returns on the scheme s assets are classified as actuanal gains

and losses

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets ansmg from
acquisitions

Determining whether goodwill or associated intangible assets are
impaired requires an estiimation of the value 1n use of the cash-
generating units to which these assets have been allocated The value in
use calculauon requires the entity to estmate the future cash flows
expected 1o anse from the cash-generating enit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
at the balance sheet date was £54,712 000 and of intangible assets
ansing from acquisitons was £36 800,000 No impairment adjusiment
has been made for the year ended 3t December 2007
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Revenue and segmental analysis
2007 2006
£000 £000

Revenue by destination

United Kingdom 289.622 290,627
Europe 8,989 3,889
Other countnes 2,045 568
300,656 295,084

Revenue, profit before tax and net assets in both years, related to the design, fabncation and erection of structural steelwork and related actwities

and represents the Group s pnmary reported informanon

Revenue, which relates wholly to construction contracts, and related assets in both years onginated frem the United Kingdom Secondary reported information

15 provided for Revenue by destination above

Operating profit
Operating profit for the year has been arvived at after crediting
2007 2006
£000 £000
Rent recevable 418 79
Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 114 —
and after charging
Deprecation on owned assets 3,925 4,183
Depreoation on assets held under hire-purchase contracts — 55
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment — 212
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 2,200 —
Unrealised losses an dervative financial assets 2 390 —
Auditors remuneration — audit 142 105
— other services 474 a0
Rentals under operating leases
— hire of plant and machinery 2,587 2513
— other operating leases 3302 3.439
Staff costs (note 5} 55985 51 066
Financiaf Review Corporate Gavemance Group Accounts Company Accounts
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4 Operating profit continued
The analysis of auditors remuneration 15 as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 18 17
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group
~— The audit of the Company s subsidiarnes pursuant to fegistation 124 88
Total audit fees 142 105
Other services pursuant to legislaion
— Class | aroutar reporting accountant services 300 =
Tax services
— advisory and compliance services 53 8O
-~ adwisory services in relation to the Fisher Engineering acquisition 61 —
Corporate finance services &0 —
Total non-audit fees 474 80
A descnption of the work of the audit commuttee 15 set out i the corporate govemance statement on page 41
5 Directors and employees
Details of directors remuneration for the year are prowided in the audited part of the Directors Remuneration Report an pages 48 and 49
The average number of persons employed by the Group ncluding executive directors) durning the year was
2007 2006
Number Number
Producton 931 856
Site 207 223
Sales and administrabon 45 42
1183 1121
The aggregate payrcll costs of these persons were as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 48,172 44 504
Social securty costs 5740 5095
Other pension Costs 2,073 1467
55,985 51 066

Highlights Group Overview Charman s Statement
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Investment revenue and finance costs

2007 2006

£000 £000
Interest recevable 1,405 1,250
Interest on bank borrowings 1,138} 69)
Interest on finance leases (1) (13)
Total finance costs 1,139) (82)
Net interest recevable 266 1168
Tax
al The tax charge compnses

2007 2006

£000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax charge at 30% (2006 30%) based on profits for the year 12,940 9304
Adjustments to prior years tax provision (16 (89)
Total current tax 12,924 9215
Deferred tax
Current year {crecht)/charge (note 21) (1,009 86
Adustments to pnor years proviston " 64
Total deferred tax 998) 150
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 11,926 9365
b} Tax recencikabon
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
Profit before tax 38,360 30,286
Tax on Group profit on ordinary activities at standard
UK corporation tax rate of 309 (2006 30%) 11,508 2086
Expenses not deductble for 1ax purposes 581 314
Lower tax rates due to smalf companies {139} {3}
UK dvidend income [¥4] -
Unprovided deferred tax movement (8) [¥2]
MNon-qualifying profit on disposals {4) —
Adjustments to pngr years provisions (5) 25)
Income tax expense for the year 11,926 9 365

During 2007 proposed amendmenits to the Industnial Bulldings Allowance regime were announced Due to the fact that these amendments were not

substantively enacted as at 31 Decernber 2007, thetr effects have not been reflected within the Group s results

The directors have estmated that should these amendments be substantively enacted durning the year ending 31 Decemnber 2008, the deferred tax dtability held
in the consohdated balance sheet would increase by £6 5 million with a corresponding charge to the Consolidated Income Statement
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Dwidends
2007 2006
£000 £000
Amounts recogrised as distnbutions to equity holders in the penod
Final dividend for the year ended 31 Decernber 2006 of 9 25p {2005 6 125p) per share 7,549 4998
Interim dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of 6 75p {2006 5 00p) per share 5,508 4081
13,057 92079
Praoposed final dwidend for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2007 of 13 25p (2006 9 25p) per share 11,741 7549

The proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial

statements

Eamungs per share
There are no discontinued operatons in either the current or prior year

The caleulavon of the basic and diluted earmings per share 1s based on the following data reflecung the 4 1 share spht in Qclober 2007

Eamings
2007 2006
£000 £000
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share being net profit attnbutable
to equity holders of the parent company 26,434 20921
Earmings for the purposes of underlying basic earmings per share being underlying
net profit atinbutable to equity holders of the parent company 29,739 20921
Number Number
MNumber of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic eamings per share 83,218,835 81,607,876
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Share-based payments scheme 78,803 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 83,297,638 81607 876
Basic earmings per share 3177p 25 64p
Underlying basic earrungs per share 35 74p 25 64p
Diluted earmnings per share 31 73p 25 64p
Underlying dilute¢ earnings per share 3570p 25 64p

Highhghts Group Cverview Chairman s Staterment
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10 Goodwll

Cost £000
At 1 January 2006 and 1 January 2007 6,760
Recognised on acquisition of a subsidiary (MNote 29} 47980
At 31 December 2007 54,740
Accumutated rmpairment losses
At 1 January 2006 28
Impairment losses for the year -
At 1 January 2007 28
Impairrment losses for the year —
At 31 December 2007 28
Cammying amount
At 31 December 2007 54,712
At 31 December 2006 6,732
The carrying amount of gocdwill 15 made up as follows

£000
On the Fisher Engineenting acquisition in 2007 47980
On the Atlas Ward acquisiion in 2005 6,571
On the Watson Steel Structures acquisition in 2001 161

54712
The recoverable amounts of goodwill are detesmined from value in use calculatiens Forecast cash flows are based ore approved budgets and plans and
subsequent cash flows are icreased in line with projected economic growth rates The cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax discount value of 11%
for weighted average cost of capital
The Group tests gocdwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired
1 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets

acquired on Developmertt
acquisition coslts Total
£000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 fanuary 2007 — 1608 1608
Additions 39000 632 39,632
At 31 December 2007 39,000 2,240 41,240
Amortsation
At 1 lanuary 2007 - - -
Charge for the year 2200 - 2200
At 31 December 2007 2,200 - 2,200
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 36,800 2,240 39,040
At 31 December 2006 — 1,608 1608

Mo amortisation charges will be incurred on the develepment costs untd the development has been completed
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1 Qther intangible assets continued

The intangible assets acquired on acquisition 2nse as a result of applying IFRS 3 which requires the separate recogriton of acquired intangibles from goadwall

Dunng the year the acquisition of Fisher Engineenng Ltd resulted in intangible assets as follows

Customer
relationships Brands Order book Know-how Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 — — — — -
Acquired in year 25 80O 3,200 9600 400 39,000
At 31 December 2007 25,800 3,200 9,600 400 39,000
Amaortisation
At 1 January 2007 — — — - -
Charge for the period 620 30 1540 10 2200
At 31 December 2007 620 30 1,540 10 2,200
Net book value
At 31 December 2007 25,180 3,170 8,060 390 36,800

Al 31 December 2006 -

Amortisation of acquired intangtoles 15 included in the Consohdated Income Statement as part of Administrative expenses and 1s dlassified wathin the middle

calumn entitled “Other items”™

The weighted average amorhsatian penod for each category of intangible asset 1s disclosed in the Statement of Sigrificant Accounting Policies on page 59
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12 Property, plant and equipment
Freehold and Fixtures,
long leasehold hthngs
land and Plant and and office Motor
buldings machinery equipment vehides Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2006 20082 23970 1,057 2,644 47753
Additions &7 4,732 205 1,282 13 010
Transfer to inventones {822) — — - {822)
Disposals - (1,241} (msg) (973) {2332}
At 1 fanuary 2007 26,051 27.461 1144 2953 57609
Additions 27278 5154 84 1,163 33,679
Acqusinon of subsidary 2,217 4,588 332 n 7508
Disposals {51 (3,475) (53) (1,257} (4,836)
At 31 Decemnber 2007 55,495 33,728 1507 3230 93,960
Accumulated depreciabion
Depreciation
At 1 January 2006 412 8882 614 1,061 10,969
Charge for the year 178 31,389 157 514 4,238
Disposals - (552) (118) (5300 (1,200
At 1 January 2007 590 11719 653 1045 14,007
Charge for the year 202 2954 173 596 3,925
Disposals - (2 683) (53) {659) (3,395)
At 31 December 2007 792 11,990 772 982 14,537
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2007 54,703 21,738 734 2,243 79,423
At 31 December 2006 25 461 15 742 491 1908 43 602
Finanaal Review Corporate Gevermnance Group Accounts Company Accounts
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12 Property, plant and equipment continued
The Group operates a system of reqular valuations of freehold and long leasehold land and buldings across its portfolio which have nduded using FPD Sawlls
and Rushton International Chartered Surveyors This operates on a rotational basis, with one of the five mam properties reviewed each year The five properties
are the Severfield=Reeve Structures Lirmnted and Severfield -Reeve Projects Linited sites at Dalton Airfield Industnal Estate the Watson Steel Structures Limited
site at Lostock Lane 8olton, the Atlas Ward Structures Limited site at Sherburn and the Fisher Engineenng Limited steed storage site at Enmiskiften in Northern
Ireland
To date, no matenal surplus over net book value has been identified, and accordingly no adjustment to revalue freehold and long leasehaold land and builldings
has been considered necessary
The net book value of the Group s plant and machinery includes £MNil (2006 £395 000} in respect of assets held under finance leases
13 Subsidianes
The Company has investments 1n the following significant subsidiary undertakings All of the comparues hsted are registered in England
Severfield—Reeve Structures Limited — steel fabrication
Watson Steel Structures Limited - steel fabrication
Rowen Structures Lirmted — project contracting
Atlas Ward Structures Limited — steet fabrication
Fisher Engineenng Limited — steet fabncation (acguired 8 October 2007)
Steelcraft Erection Services Limited — steel erection
Severfield—Reeve Internavonal Limited — overseas contracts
Severfield—Reeve Projects Limited — project managers of building contracts

14

The Company owns the whole of the issued share capital of the subsidianes noted above

Investments and interests in (ot ventures

On 3 February 2006 Severheld~Reeve Structures Limited entered into a 50/50 joint venture agreement with Murray Metals Group Limited to form Steel UK
Limited, a company involved in steel buying activities To date, both parties have continued to purchase steel through the indmduat companies and ne trade has
passed through Steet UK Limited The share capital invested by the Group s a norminal sum of £50

Steel UK Limited 1s registered in England

Highlghts Group Ovenview Chairman s Staternent Cperational Review




Severfisld-Rowen Pl Annual Report 2007

69
15 Interests in associates
The Company has an interest in two assocated compantes as follows
Holding % Class of capital
Kennedy Watts Partnersh:p Limited — CAD/CAM steelwork design 251 Preferred ordinary
Fabsec Limited ~ development of fire beam 250 Qrdinary
Share of net Loans to
assets/ assooate
Goodwill {habihites) undertaking Total
Group £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2006 362 (390 71 36
Profits retained — i0 — 10
At 1 January 2007 362 187 7 46
Profits retained - =8 — 58
At 31 December 2007 362 (329) 71 104
The Groups share of the retaned loss for the year of the associates 15 made up as follows
Kennedy Watts
Partnership Fabsec
Limited Limited Total
£000 £000 1000
Share of operating results 44 14 58
Summansed financial information 1n respect of the Group s assoaates s as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Total assets 1594 1259
Total habidimes (3 248) {3,155)
Net habiliies (1,654) {1,896)
Group s share of associates net habilities (329) (387
Revenue 2,881 2720
Profit after 1ax 43 134
Group s share of assoaates profit after tax for the penod 58 10
Dunng the year ended 31 Dacember 2005 the Board reviewed the mnvestment of long-term loans outstanding from Fabsec Ltd of £614,000 and conduded that
there was an element of doubt over the collection of this loan in the short to medium tesm Consequently, after cansidenng the net kabilities of Fabsec Lid a
provision of £543,000 was made against the debt This proviston remains in place at 31 December 2007
16 Inventones
2007 2006
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 4,874 1685
Work in-progress 13,057 1,648
17931 3,333
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17 Constructron contracts

2007 2006
€000 £000
Contracts In progress at balance sheet date
Amounts due from consiructon contract customers
induded i trade and other recewables 60,478 42,110
Amounts due to construction contract customers
incuded 1n trade and other payables (1,969 (5,957)
58,509 36153
Contract costs mcurred plus recogmised profits less
recognised losses to date 1,081,716 705 416
Less progress bilings (1,023,207) (669,263)
58,509 36,153

At 31 December 2007, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to £11,020 000 {2006 £6,219 000}

Al 31 Decernber 2007 amounts of £3 803 000 (2006 £2,401,000) included in trade and cther recervables and ansing from construction contracts are due for
settlement after more than 12 menths

18 Trade and other recevables

2007 2006

£00C £000

Amounts due from construction contract customers (note 17) 60,478 42110
Other recevables 2,803 1592
Prepayments and accrued income 2,333 3,084
65614 46,786

Within other recervables there s deferred expenditure of £NIl (2006 £649,000) due after more than one year
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates thetr faie value

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an external credit raing to assess the potential customer s credit quality and defines credit hmiis by
custormer Adequate crecht Insurance 1s taken out on all customers to manage the expasure that may anse as the contractual werk proceeds Accordingly no bad
debt provisions are held or expenses incurred

Due to the nature of the busmess involving applications for payment, contractually overdue amounts within trade and other recervables are limited to retentions
The Group has ngorous procedures in place for monitonng and obtaining settlement of relentions in a prompt manner Amounts overdue at 31 December
2007 n respect of retentions were £44,000 (2006 £94 000}

19 Trade and other payables

2007 2006

£000 £000

Trade creditors 34,072 30,258
Other taxation and soctal secunty 6,039 5,346
Other creditors and accruals 15,253 14,895
Payments in advance (note 17) 1,969 5957
Amounts owed (o associates 524 510
57,857 56,966

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value

The average credit penod taken for trade purchases 1s 51 days (2006 52 days!
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20 Prowvisions
Contract
prowvisions
£000
At 1 January 2007 3000
Utihsed 1 year (10m
Released n year (300)
At 31 Decemnber 2007 2,600
Contract provisions relate to provisions on contracts including fault and warranty prowisions, and are expected to be utiised within three years Prowsion 1s
made for the directors best estimate of known legal ddaims in progress
21 Deferred tax habilties

The following are the major deferred tax habilities and assets recogrused by the Group and movements thereon dunng the current and prior reporting penod

2007 2006

£000 £000
Dreferred tax habtulihes (14,457} (3,025)
Deferred tax assets 2,967 2,283
Met deferred tax hability (11,490} (742)
The net deferred tax llability 15 made up as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
Excess capital allowances 4,153 3,025)
Other timing differences 230 97
Intangible assets on acquisitian of subsidiary (10,304} -
Forward exchange contracts 798 —
On relirement benefit obhgations 1,889 2,186
Met deferred tax liability (11,490} (742
The movement during the year in deferred tax hability 15 as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
At 1 January (742} (943)
Current year credit/(charge} 1,009 (86)
Adjustment in respect of prior years an (64)
On acquisiion of subsidhary 11,527) —
Deferred tax in relation to pension scheme {profits)/losses (85) 351
Reducton m tax rate on defined pension scheme (134) -
At 31 December (11 490} (742)

The deferred tax asset relates to 28% of the Group s deficit on its retirement benefit defined scheme of £6,745 000 the valuation of financal instruments and

other trming differences

At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £2 200 000 (2006 £2 200 000) available for offset against future profit No deferred tax asset
was recognised in respect of such losses due 1o the unpredictability of future profit streams within the Group company In question Losses may be carred

forward indefirutely
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22 QObligations under finance leases

Mimimum lease Present value of
paymenits lease payments
2007 2006 2007 20046
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within ane year — 67 — 66
In the second to fifth years inclusive — — — —
— 67 - 66
Less future finance charges - ) - nfa
Present value of lease obligations — 66 - 66
Less Amount due for settferment within 12 months {(shown
under current liabilittes) - 66

Amount due for settlement after 12 months - -

All lease obhgahtions are denominated 1n stering
The farr value of the Group 5 lease obligatons approxsmates their camrying amount

The Group s obligations under finance leases were secured by the lessors rights over the leased assets

3 Finanaal instruments
Capital nsk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders
The capatal structure of the Group conssts of debt, which indudes borrowings cash and cash equvalents and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
compnsing issued capiial reserves and retained earmings

Geanng ratio
The Board of Directors reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis following the taking out of borrowings in 2007 As part of this review 1t considers

the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital

The geaning ratio at the year end 15 as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
Borrowings (53,504) (66}
Cash and cash equmvalents 5,445 38,304
Net (debt/funds (48,059 38 238
Equity 116,829 66 225
MNet debt to equity ratio 41 1% MN/A

Equity includes all capita! and reserves of the Group attnbutable to equity holders of the parent There are no externally /mposed capital requirements

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted ncluding the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
ncome and expenses are recogrised In respect of each class of financial asset, financal labsdity and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 to the finanoal
staternents

Highhights Group Ouervew Charman s Statement QOperaucnal Review




Severfield—Rowen Pk Annual Report 2007

73

23

Finanaal nstruments continued
Categones of financial instruments

Carrying value

2007 2006

£000 £000
Finanaial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,445 38,304
Amounts due from construction contract customers 60,478 42110
Finanaial kabilittes
Trade creditors (34,072) (30 258)
Borrowings (53,504} -
Finance leases - 166)
Derwative financal instruments (2,850} -

Derwvative finangial instruments are the only instruments valued at fair value through profit or loss and are valued as such on initial recognition These relate to
foreign currency forward contracts measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves matching the matunties of the contracts Except for
derwative financial instruments, the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial habsiies are recorded at amortsed cost in the financial statements and are
considered 1o approvamate their fair value.

Cash and cash egquivalents
This compnzes cash held by the Group and short term deposits with an onginal matunty of three months or less The carrying amount of these assets
approxirmates their fair value

General nsk management princaples

The Board has overall responsibility for the estabkshment and oversight of the Group s nsk management framework A formal nisk assessment and management
framework for assessing, menitoring and managing the strategic operanenal and fmanaal risks of the Group s 1n place 10 ensure appropnate nsk management
of its operations Internal control and nisk management systems are embedded n the operations of the divisions

Financial risks and management
The Group has exposure to a vaniety of financial nsks through the conduct of its operations Risk management 1s governed by the Groups operational policies
which are subject to penodic review by the Board of Directors

Credit nsk

The Group s pnmary exposure to credit nsk arises from the potenual for non-payment or default from construcuon contract debtors The degree 10 which the
Group 1s exposed to this credit risk depends on the individual charactenstics of the contract counterparty and the nature of the project The Group s credit sk is
also influenced by the general macroeconomuc condiions The Group does not have any concentration nsk m respect of amaunts due from construction
contract customers at the reporting date with them being spread across a wide range of customers Due to the nature of the Group s operahions, it 1s normal
practice for customers to hold retentions in respect of contracts completed Retentions held by customers at 31 December 2007 were £11020 000 (2006

£6 219,000}

The Group manages Its exposure to credit nsk through the applicauon of its credit nsk management policies which specify the minimum requirements in
respect of the credit worthmess of potential customers, assessed through reports from credit agencies and the tming and extent of progress payments in
respect of contracts In addimon before accepting any new customer adequate credit insurance 1s taken out as reported in Note 18

The Group manages the collection of retentions through its post-complelion project monitonng procedures and ongomng contact with customers so as lo ensure
that potential 1ssues that could lead to the non payment of retentions are addressed as soon as they are identified

Amounts outstanding from construction contract customers are due with reference to the payment terms for each particular contract but the majority would be
receivable within four months from the end of the reparting periad Amounts due for settlement after 12 months are disclosed in Note 17

The Group uses four banks to spread the nsk of holding significant cash balances with financal msututions

Liguidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 15 the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet 1ts financial obligations as and when they fall due The wtimate responsibiity for hquihity nsk rests
with the Board

The Group generates cash through iis operatons and aims to manage hiquidity by ensuring that it will abways have sufficient bquichty to meet 1ts liabilies when

due under both normal and stress condiions wathout incurning unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Group s reputation Forecast and actual cash flow
15 continuously monitored

Finanaat Review Corparate Govefnance Group Accounts Company Accounts




Severfleld-Rowsn Plc Annual Report 2007

74

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Yearended 31 December 2007

23

Finanaial mstruments contnued

Trade creditors are inibally measured at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using effective mterest rates, and the Directors consider this to be the case
at the end of the reporting period The average credit penod taken for trade purchases 15 51 days (2006 52 days), which reflects the mix of when these
amounts are coniractually due

Borrowings represent the Group s revohang credit faohty from the Royal Bank of Scotland and National Australia Bank jointly which prowides cedit support of
up to £70 milion at an interest rate of 0 45% above LIBOR. These borrowings were taken out in 2007 1n refation to the acquisiion of Fisher Engmeertng
Limited The amount borrowed s scheduled to be redrawn at a lower amount in 2008 The revolving credit facility 1s avalable for three years ending

2% August 2010

Borrowings outstanding at 31 December 2007 amounted to £53 504,000 (2006 Nil}

Market nsk
The Group s actmties expose i pnmanty to the financial nisks of changes in credu rnisks descnbed above, in foreign cumency exchange rates and interest rates
The Group has entered into a vanety of dernvative financial instruments to manage its expostre ta foregn currency nisk, and 10 Jaruary 2008 (0 interest rates

Market nsk exposures are monitored and are supplemented by sensitvity analysis There has been no change to the Group s exposure to market nsks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk

Foreign currency nsk management
The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuabons anse Exchange rate exposures
are managed within approved policy parameters uthsing forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group seeks to mimirmise the effects of currency nsks by using derrvative financial instruments when appropnate to hedge these nisk exposures agarmst
contracted sates The use of financial denvauves 1s governed by the Group s pohicies approved by the Board of Directors The Group does not enter into or trade

financial instruments including denvative financial instruments, for speculative purposes

The carrying amounts of the Groups foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporung date are as follows

Liabtlities Assets
2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Eurg (3,751 - 4,181 128
Dollar - - 222 228
(3,751 — 4,403 349

Forergn currency sensttivity analysis
The Group I1s mainty exposed to the euro

The following table details the Group s sensitvity to @ 10% increase and decrease 1n stefing against the relevank forergn currencies  10% s the sensitmty rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management persannel and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates The sensitmty anatysis ncludes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and derwative iinancial
instruments, {being forward exchange contracts of 98 13 millon Euros) and adjusts their translation at the penod end for a3 10% change in foreign currency
rates A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the sterling strengthens 10% aga:nst the relevant currency For a 10%
weakening of the stering against the relevant currency there would be an equal and opposite simpact on the profit and cther equity and the balances below
would be negative

Euro currency impact

2007 2006
£000 £000
Profit or loss 6,903 32)

The Group s sensitivity 1o foreign currency has increased in 2007 due to the number of contracts undertaken primanly by Fisher Engineenng Limited n Irefand
and relates prnapzlly to the fair value of denvative financial Instruments
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Financal mstruments continued
Forward foreign exchange contracts
It 15 the policy of the Group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover euro currency receipts on relevant contracts

At 31 December 2007 the Group had forward exchange contracts held for the sale of 98 13 million euros at an average exchange rate of 14161 euros to the
pound and maturing wittun 12 months of the year end (2006 Nl

Interest rate nsk management
The Group s exposed to interest rate nsk as descnbed under the borrowngs paragraph earlier i this note In ine with the Group s policies in January 2008 it
entered into a fixed rate swap agreement for the majonty of its anticipated borrowings

Interest rate senstivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been deterrmined based on the exposure to interest rates at the balance sheet date For floating rate habilimes, the analysis 1s
prepared assuming the amount of liabiity outstanding at balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year A 0 5% increase or decrease 1s used when
reporting interest rate nsk internally to key management personnel and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in

wterest rates

If interest rates had been 0 5% higher and all other vanables were held constant, the Group s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 would decrease by
£240 000 (2006 ncrease by £192 0007 This 1s atiributable to the Group s exposure to interest rates on its vanable rate borrowings

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased dunng the current penod due to the increase in the level of barrowings in the year However current
mdications are that the level of Group borrowings will decrease dunng 2008 and to nil dunng 2009
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24 Share-based payments
The Group introduced during the year a share based incentive scheme open to all emgloyees of the Group although the current intention 1s that only the
Company s executive drrectors and selected semor employees will participate in the scheme The Group recognised a total charge of £604,000 1n the year with
a corresponding entry to feserves

Performance Share Plan
The vesting of awards 1s subject to performance conditions set by the Remuneration Comimittee.

During the year the Remuneration Commuttee granted 110,204 ordinary shares of 10p each at nif value to the executive directors of the Company Following
the 4 1 share spht these converted to 440,816 ordinary shares of 2 5p each The vesting of these awards will be dependent on the Company s earmings per
share performance over the three year penod from | January 2007 to 31 Decernber 2009 with the following vestng schedule to apply

Company s EPS performance gver the performance penod % of award vesting
Equal to less than RPI + 18% 0%
Equal to RPI + 18% 25%
Equal to RPI + 45% or better 100%
Between RP! + 18% and RPi + 45% Pro rata between 25% and 100%

The Black-Scholes priang model has been used to measure the fair value of the shares granted The assumptions used in the model are as follows

Share price on date of grant £5 07"
Exercise price Nil
Expected volatility (using histonc periormance) 50%
Risk-free rate 5%
Dividend 200p
Expected percentage options exeraised versus granted 100%
Actual life 3 years

* Granted on 5 October 2007 Share price adjusted 1o reflect subsequent 4 t share spht

The Black-5choles model produced using the above assumptions, an annual charge of £604,000

25 Share capital

2007 2006
£000 £000
Authorised
27,000,000 ordinasy shares of 10p each 2700
108 000 000 ordinary shares of 2 5p each 2,700
Issued and fully paid
20 401 969 ordinary shares of 10p each 2,040
88 607 876 ordinary shares of 2 5p each 2,215

There are no share options outstanding as at 31 December 2007

On 8 October 2007, 1 750 000 ordinary shares of 10p were 1ssued as part of the acquisiion of the Achion Merchants Limited group at the market value of
£20 B9 per share

On 8 Ociober 2007 the Company 5 authonsed and issied share capital was sub-dmnided on the basis of 4 new ordinary shares of 2 5p each for each existing
orcknary share of 10p each
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26 Share premium account
£000
Balance at 1 January 2006 and 1 January 2007 9,770
Premium ansing on 1ssue of equity shares {Note 25) 36,382
Balance at 31 December 2007 46,152
27 Other reserves
Share-based Other
payment reserve reserves Total
£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2006 and 1 January 2007 — 139 139
Share-based payments in year 604 - 604
Balance at 31 December 2007 604 139 743
28 Retamned earmings
£000
Balance at 1 January 2008 43,252
Net profit for the year 20921
Dwidends paid (% 079)
Actuanal Joss on defined benefit pensign scherme 1,169
Deferred income taxes on defined benefit pension scheme 351
Balance at 1 January 2007 54,276
Net profit for the year 26,434
Divdends pad (13 057}
Actuanal profit on defined benefit pension scheme 285
Deferred income taxes on defined benefit pension scheme (85}
Reduction in 1ax rate on deferred tax on defined benefit pension scheme (134)
Balance at 31 December 2007 67719

The Company purchased £Nil of shares (2006 £205 000) to meet ts obligations under the Share Matching Plan disctosed in the Eirectors Remuneration
Report on page 49 The full cost of purchasing the shares of £350 000 was charged to the Income Statement in 2006 and 2005
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29 Acquisition of subsidiary

On 8 October 2007 the Company acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of Action Merchants Limited for a to1al consideration of £52,198,000 Actron

Merchants Limited 15 the parent company of Fisher Engineering Limited a company based in Enruskillen in Northern Ireland involved in the design

fabncation and erection of structural steelwork. This transacthon was accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting The provisional values (given the
purchase of the business m the fourth quarter of the financial year) atinbuted are as follows

Book Fair vatue Fair
value adjustments value
£000 £000 £000
Met assels acquired
Property plant 2nd equipment 7508 - 7508
Intangible assets - 39000 39000
Inventortes 5122 - 5122
Trade and ather recevables 14,443 - 14,443
Cash and cash equwvalents 685 — 685
Trade and other payables (10171} — (0,171}
Denvative financial instruments - {460} {460}
Tax labihties 382) — (382}
Deferred tax hability (736) (10 791) (11527}
16 469 27749 44,218
Goodwall 47980
Total consideration 92,198
Satisfied by
Cash 55,641
Issue of shares {(Note 25) 36 557
92198
Being
Consideration 90,000
Costs 2198
92198
MNet cash outflow ansing on acquision
Cash consideration 55 641
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (685)
54956

The directors considered the premium anising on the acquisiion and concluded there were separately identifiable intangible assets of £39 mullion (Note 11)
which were capable of being recognised with an associated deferred tax impact

The balance of goodwill arnising on the acquisition of the Action Merchants Limited group was attnbutable to the anticipated prefitability of the distnibution of

the Group s products in a broader range of markets and the anticipated future operating synergies from the combination [t was also attributable to the

significant experience and knowledge of its employees and the potential to develop prerises acquired as part of the business

The Achon Merchants Limited group contributed £19,429 000 revenue and £3,850,000 to the Group s profit before tax for the period between the date of
acquisition and the balance sheet date

The pre-acquisition revenue and profit before tax of the Action Merchants Lirmited group for the penod from 1 January 2007 to 8 October 2007 amounted to
£35 203,000 and £6 453 000 respectively, and on this basis Group revenue would have been £335 859 000 and Group profit before tax £44 813 000 if the
Group had owned the Action Merchants Limited group from the beginming of the year
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30 Notes to the cash flow statement
2007 2006
£000 £000
Operating prafit from continuing operations 38,094 29,118
Adustments for
Share of results of associated companies {58} 10}
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 3,925 4238
Pension movements (257) (266}
(Profit/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {114) 212
Movement in provisions {400 3000
Share-based paymenits 604 =
Amortisation of acquired mtangibles 2,200 —
Unrealised losses on dervative financial contracts 2,390 -
Operating cash flows before movements In working capita 46,384 36,292
(Increasel/decrease n nventones (9,476) 4 807
Increase in recevables (4,364) {14 356}
(Decrease)increase in payables {9,550 B.745
Cash generated by operations 22,987 35 488
Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) compnse cash at bank and other short-term hughly
hiquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
3 Analysis of net debt
AL At
1 January Cash Borrowings 31 December
2007 Mow intreduced 2007
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 38304 (32 859) — 5,445
Borrowings - — (53 504) {53,504)
Finance leases (66) 66 — -
Met fundfidebt 38,238 (32,793) (53,504} (48,059)
a2 Capntal commtments
2007 2006
£000 £000
Contracted for but not prowided in the financial staternents 1900 B45
a3 Contingent habibties

The Company and its subsidianes have provided unlirited multlateral guarantees to secure any bank overdraits and loans of all other Group companies At
31 December 2007 these amounted to £69 719 000 (2006 £1193 000} The Group has also gven performance bonds in the normal course of trade
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kL Operating lease arrangements
The Group leases a number of its premises under operating leases which expire between 2008 and 2032

The total future minimum fease rentals are as follows

2007 2006
£000 £000
Minimum lease rentals due
— Withun one year 41 84
— After one year and wathin five years - -
— After five years 22,009 32,488
22,050 32,572
The Group also leases certain items of plant and machinery and vehicles whase tolal future mirimum lease remals are as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Mininum lease rentals due
— Within one year 486 388
— Alfter gne year and within frve years 5,354 6,846
— After five years 779 -
6,619 7234

3s Retirement benefit schemes
Defined contnbution schemes
The Group operates two defined coninibution rebrement benefit schemes The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustees

The total cost charged to income of £1,710,000 (2006 £1,201,000) represents contnbutions payable to these schemes by the Group at rates specfied i the
rules of the plans As at 31 December 2007 contributions of £249 000 (2006 £188 000} due in respect of the current reporting penad had not been pad
over to the schemes

Defined benefit schemes
Allas Ward has a defined benefit scheme whuich 15 now closed to new members

The most recent actuarial vatuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligahon were carned out at 31 December 2007 by Mr Alex
Pearse Fellow of the Institute of Actuanes The present value of the defined benefit obligation the related current service cost and past service cost were
measured using the projected umt credit method

2007 2006
% %

Key assurmpiions used
Discount rate 570 520
Expected return on scheme assets 560 520
Expected rate of salary increases - -
Future pension increases 325 290

When consdenng mortality assumptions a male ife expectancy o 82 at age 65 has been used in both 2007 and 2006

Highhghts Group Overview Chaumian $ Staternent QOperabional Revieve
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a5 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Amounts recogmsed in income in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Interest cost 1,081 979
Expected retum on scheme assets {718} [FA K}
363 266

The charge for the year has been included in administrative expenses Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of recognised income and
expense The cumulative actual gains and losses recognised amount to a loss of £1,629 000

The actual return on scheme assets was £613,000 (2006 £295,000)

The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group s obhgations i respect of the Atlas Ward defined benefit retirement scheme 1s as follows

2007 2006 2005

£000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations {21 222) (21,038) (19,834)
Fair value of scheme assets 14,477 13,751 13 450
Defiait in scheme 16,745) (7 287) (6 384)
Liability recogmised in the balance sheet 16,745} (728N (6,384)

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of the total scheme assets are as follows

2007 2006

% %

Equibes 294 78
Bonds 541 88 2
Cash 45 40
Property 120 —
1000 1000

When investments are held in bonds and cash, the expected long-term rate of returmn 1s taken to be the yields generally prevaiting on such assets at the balance
sheet date. A higher rate of return 1s expecied on equity invesiments which 15 based more on realistic future expectations than on the retums that have been
avalable histoncally The overall expected long term rate of returmn on assets Is then the average of these rates taking into account the underlying asset portfolio of
the pension plan

Movemnents in the present value of defined benefit obtgations were as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000

At 1 January 2007 (21,038) {19 834)
Interest cost (1,081) (979)
Actuanial gams and losses 350 {751)
Benefits pad 507 526
At 31 December 2007 (21,222) (21 038)

Finanaal Review Corporate Govemnance Group Accounts Company Accounts
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35 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Movements m the fair value of scheme assets were as follows

2007 2006

£000 £000
AL 1 January 2007 13,754 13 450
Expected return on scheme assets 718 713
Actuanal gains and losses {(105) 418
Contnbutions from the sponscring companies 620 532
Benefits pad (507 (526}
At 31 December 2007 14,477 13 751
None of the scheme s assets were invested In Atlas Ward Holdings Limited or property occupred by Atlas Ward Holdings Limited
The Group expects to contnbute £63 000 per month to its defined benefit penston scheme in the year te 31 December 2008
History of expenence of gains and losses

2007 2006 2005
Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets (£000) (105} {418} 547
Percentage of scheme assets (0 79%) {3 0% 410
Expenence gains and losses on scheme habilities (£000) (373) 57 384
Percentage of the present value of scheme habdines {1 8% 0 3% 19%
Total amount recogrised m the Consohdated Staternent of Recognised
Income and Expense (£000} 285 (1169 (745)
Percentage of the present value of scheme liabilives 1 3% {5 6%) (3 &%)
Highhghts Group Overview Chairman s Statement Cperational Review
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36

37

Related party transactions
The remuneration of the directors who are the key management personngl of the Group, 15 prowided In the audited part of the Directors Remuneration Report
on pages 48 and 49

The charge In relation 1o share-based payments 15 provided in Note 24

The Group was involved in a related party transaction with Dalton Airfield Estate Limuted, a company controlled by six directors of the Company This transaction
related to the sale and leaseback of the majonty of the production facity at Dalton which was sold for a cash consideration of £14 muillion v 2007 and then
leased back to the Group at a rent costing £1 54 mullton perannum On 9 October 2007 the Group acquired the freehold reversion of the facility for the sum of
£23 5 ruthon

Dunng the year the Group entered into refated party transactions with PLLG GmbH a company controlled by P M Levine {Chairman) These transactuons were
for fees in relation to sundry advice given and advice in relaton to the acquisiions and totalled £328 000 (2006 £234 000)

There were no outstanding balances with either of the above at 31 December 2007 (2006 £Nil}

During the year Severfield—Reeve Projects Limited undertook to carry out a bullding contract for PJ Davison At 31 December 2007 revenue taken on this
contract ampunted to £129,000, of which the balance oulstanding at the year end was £29,000

Transacthions between the Company and its subsidianes which are related partes have been eliminated on consokdation and are not disclosed I this note
Transactions between the Group and its assoaated undertakings are disclosed below

Dunng the year the Group purchased services in the crdinary course of business from Kennedy Watts Partnership Limited at a cost of £2 024 000 (2006
£1,821,000} The amount cutstanding at 31 December 2007 was £524,000 (2006 £507.000)

Loans outstanding from Fabsec Limited at 31 December 2007 amounted to £614,000 (2006 £614,000) The directors continue to have doubts regardmng the
collectability of these loans and consequently a prowision of £543,000 which was made in 2005 is still in place leawng a balance at 31 December 2007 of
£71,000 2006 €71,000) During the year the Group purchased services in the ordmary course of business from Fabsec Lirmited at a ¢ost of £278 000 (2006
£277000) The amount outstanding at 31 December 2007 was £Mil (2006 £3 000)

Severfield-Rowen Plc s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The address of the registered office 1s given on page
32 The nature of the Group s operations and its pnncepal actnaties are set oul on page 34 These financal statements are presented 1 pounds sterling because

|
|
General Information l
|
|
that 1s the cusrency of the pnimary economic environment i which the Group operates }

|

In the current year the Group has adopted IFRS 7 “Financial instruments disclosures” which is effective for annual reporting perieds begarming on or after
1 January 2007, and the related amendment to IAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements” The impact of adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to IAS 1 has been |
to expand the disclosures prowded in these finanoal statements regarding the Group s financial instrurnents and management of capital |

Four interpretations 1ssued by the International Finaneial Reporting Implementations Commuttee are effective for the current penod These are IFRIC 7 “Applying |
the restaternent approach under 1AS 29 financial reporting in hypennflationary econamies”, IFRIC 8 “Scope of IFRS 2° IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of embedded |
derwatives™ and IFRIC 10 “Intenm financial reporting and impairment”™ The adoption of theses interpretations has not led to any changes in the Groups

accountng policies

At the date of authonsatron of these finanaial statements the foflowing standards and interpretations which have not been applhed in these finanoal statements
were In 1ssue but nat yet effecive

IFRS 8 Operating segments

1AS 23 Revisedd  Borrowing cosis

IFRIC 1 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer foyalty programmes

IFRIC 14 1AS 9 The kmit on a defined benefit asset, mirmum funding requirements and their interacton

The directors anticipate that the adoptron of these Standards and Interpretanions in future periods will have no matenal impact on the finanaal statements
of the Group

Financtdl Review Corporate Govemance Group Accounts Company Accounls
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IFRS UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Results
Revenug 300,636 295 084 236722 204,277 170152
Underlying cperaung profu” 42,684 29118 19,303 12,108 9177
Underhying profit before tax” 42350 30,286 19,652 12 218 912
MNon underlying items (4,590 — - - -
Profit attnbutable to equity holders
of Severfield—Rowen Plc 26,434 20921 13 515 8400 6161
Assets employed
Non-current assets 173,279 51988 44,560 34,872 31,954
Net current Giabilibes)Yassets (35,615) 25,266 18 034 15,472 11 603
Non-current habilines {20,835 (11 029} (7,393) (3,049} (2902)
Net assets 116,829 66,225 55,201 47,295 40,655
Key statistics
Earnings per share
Basic — underlyng* 35.74p 25 64p 16 60p 10 36p 762p
Basic 177 25 64p 16 60p 10 36p 762p
Diluted — underlying* 35 70p 25 64p 16 60p 10 36p 762p
Diluted 31 73p 25 64p 16 60p 10 36p 762p
Dradends per share 2000p 14 25p 925p 575p 4 25p
Dnndend cover (umes) 18 18 18 18 18
Share pnce — high 620 0p 412 0p 2415p 1275p 90 Op
— low 344 75p 241 5p 119 75p 85 Op 51 88p

The amounts disclosed for 2003 are stated on the basis of UK GAAP because 1t 1s not pracucable to restate amounts for peniods pnior to the date of transiion to IFRS

Key staustics for pnor years have been restated to reflect the 4 1 share capiial in October 2007

" Underhang figures are stated before the amertisation of acquired intangibles and unreabised losses on dervative contracts
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Preliminary announcement of full year results 2 Apnil 2008
Pubhcaten of Annua! Report 7 May 2008
Annual General Meeung 30 May 2008

Payment of final dnidend

16 June 2008

Announcement of intenm results August 2008
Payment of intertm drvidend October 2008
Finangi2l Revew Carporate Govermnance Group Accounts Campany Accounts
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3 DUNDRUM SHOPPING CENTRE,
DUBLIN

Dundrum Shopping centre is located
within the heart of Dublin’s most
affluent suburbs and contains more than
80 shops and restaurants on 3 levels The
development also provides a major
anema complex, office blocks, hotel and
residential areas, a theatre and
education faclittes plus car parfung
facilittes which are located on levels
bpelow the development plus a 2,500
space multi-storey car park.

The project utilises 25,000 tonnes of
structural steelwork.

> Fisher Engimeenng
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Severfield-—Rowen Plc

We have audited the parent Company financal statements of Severfield—Rowen
Pic for the year ended 31 December 2007 which compnise the Balance Sheet and
the related notes 1 to 14 These parent Company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting pelicies set out theren

We have reported separately on the Group financal statements of
Severfietd—Rowen Pic for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the
informatien in the Directors Remuneration Report that i1s descnbed as baving
been audited

Thes report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a body 1n accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members ihose matters we
are required to state to them 1n an auditors report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company s mernbers as a body, for our
audit work, for this report or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilties for prepaning the Annual Report and the parent
Company financial statements 1 accordance with apphcable law and United
Kingdem Accountng Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement of directors responsibihties

Our responsibility 1s to audit the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent Company finanoal
statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent Company financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies

Act 1985 We also report [0 you whethes in our opinion the Directors” Report

15 consistent with the parent Company financial statements The information
given In the Gireciors Report includes that specific information presented m

the Charman s Statement, Operatignal Review, Financial Review and Corporate
Social Respansibiity sections that s cross-referred from the Pnnopal Actmwity and
Business Review section of the Directors Report

In additon we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper
accounting records f we have not recerved all the information and explanatrons
we requre for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors
remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information comtained in the annual report as described in the
contents section and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited parent
Company financal statements We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the
parent Company financial staterments Cur responsibilites do not extend to any
further information outside the annual report

Highlights Group COverview

Chairmar s Staternent

Bases of audit opinion

We conducted our audit wy accordance with International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Irefand 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board Ant audit includes
examination on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures
in the parent Company knanctal statements It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of
the parent Company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies
are appropnate to the Company s arcurnstances consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficent
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent Company financial
statements are free from material masstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information i the parent Company financia!
statements

Opinion
in our opinion
® the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view in

accordance with United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting Practice, of
the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 December 2007,

& the parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared n
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and

& the informaton given in the Directors Report 15 consistent with the parent

Compa hnanclal/?t&&;}?&/ ('w
1
%1&/& 0

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Leads

2 May 2008

Operanonal Review
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2007 2006
Nate £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4 28988 25,461
Investments 5 108,089 2,687
137,077 28148
Current assets
Debtors 6 30,695 13,453
Cash at bank and in hand - 74
30,695 13 527
Creditors — amounts falling due withun one year 7 (112,629} (17 630}
Net current labilities (81,934} (4,103}
Total assets less current Liabihnes 55,143 24,045
Prowisions for habibties and charges 8 (1,060) {843}
54,083 23 202
Capntal and reserves
Called-up share capntal 9 2,215 2,040
Share premium accourt 10 46,152 9770
Other reserves 11 629 25
Profit and loss account 12 5087 11,367
Equity and total shareholders’ funds 54,083 23 202

The ﬁnanndﬁnts were approved by the Board of dir
\\ Oan

T G Haughey
Director

Finanaal Review

rs on 2 May 2008 and signed on its behalf by

pﬂ«Z‘;‘\

Corporate Governance Group Accounts

Company Accounts




Sovaerfield-Rowen Plc Annual Report 2007

90 Notes to the Company Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2007
1 Significant accounting policies Taxation
Basis of accounting Current tax, including LK corporation tax and foreign tax 1s provided at
The separate financizl statements of the Company are presented as tahmoums expected 10: paldb(or rechered) L:::ng thhe t;x]ra;es ar?d ta:s
required by the Companies Act 1985 They have been prepared under at have been enacted or substantally enacted by the balance sheel date
the histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of freehold Deferred tax 15 provided in full on bming differences which result in an
and long leasehold properues, and in accordance with applicable UK obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax or a nght to pay less
accounting standards (UK GAAP) tax, at a future date at rates expected lo apply when they crystallise
Profit and loss account based on current tax rates and law Timing differences anse from the
inclusion of items cf ncorne and expendsture in taxation computations n
In accordance with the exemption allowed by section 230 of the penods different from those which they are induded
Companies Act 1985 the Company has not presented its awn profit and n finanoal staterments
less account.
Deferred tax 1s not provided on iming differences ansing from the
Cash flow revaluation of fixed assets where there 1s no comnitment to sell the asset,
The Company is exempt from the requirements of Financial Reperung or on unremitted earmings of subsidiaries and associates where there 1s
Standard No | (Rewised? “Cash Flow Statements” no commutment to remut these eamings Deferred 1ax assets are
recegnised to the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that
Tangibie fixed assets they will be recovered Deferred tax asseis and habilities are not
Freehold and long leasehold land 1s not depreoated drscounted
Depreciatton 15 prowded on other fixed assets to wnite off the cost or Share-based payments
revalued amount of each asset over 1ts estmated useful life at the Share-based payments are accounted for as descnibed in the Group
foliowing rates accounting policies on page 60
Freehold buldings 1% straight hne
Under FRS 15 the Company has adopted a policy of continuous
revaluatton of land and buildings
Investments
Fixed asset investments are shown at cost less prowision for impairment.
Highights Group Querview Chairman s Statement Operabonal Review
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Operating profit
The auditors remuneration for audit services to the Company expensed was £2,000 (2006 £1,500)

The Company has no ermployees ather than the directors whose remuneration was borne by subsidiary undertakings
Profit of the Company
The Company has taken advantage of Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and consequently its profit and loss account 15 not presented as part of these

accounts The profit of the Company for the finanaal year amounted to £6,777,000 (2006 £9,226 000) Dvidends paid and propesed are cisclosed in Note 8
to the Consolidated financial statements

Tangible assets

Freehold and
long leasehold
land and
buildings
£000
Cost
At 1 January 2007 26180
Additions 3778
Disposals {51
At 31 December 2007 29,907
Depreaation
At 1 January 2007 g
Prowvided n year 200
Disposals —
At 31 December 2007 919
Net book value
At 31 December 2007 28,588
At 31 December 2006 25 461

The Company s freehold and fong leasehold 12nd and buildings includes those which are occupied 2nd used by some of the Company s subsidiary
undertakings

The Company operates a system of regular valuations of freehold and long leasehold land and buildings across its portfolio which have included using FPD
Savills and Rushton International Chartered Surveyors This operates on 3 rotational basis, with one of the four main properties reviewed each year The four
properties are the Severfield—Reeve Structures Limsted and Severfield-Reeve Projects Limited sites at Dalton Arrfield Industnal Estate, the Watson Steel
Structures Limited site al Lostock Lane, Bolton and the Atlas Ward Structures Lirmited site at Sherbum

To date, no matenal surplus or deficit over net book value has been identified and accordingly no adiusiment to revalue freehold and long leasehold land and
buikdings has been considered necessary

Financial Review Corporate Governance Group Accounts Company Accounis
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92 Notes to the Company Financial Statements Yearended 31 December 2007
5 Investments
2007 2006
£000 £000
Investment in subsidianes 107,554 2,152
Investment in assaciates 535 533
108,089 2,687
Investment in subsidianes
The Company has nvestments in the following significant subsidiary undertakings All of the companies hsted ara registered n England
Severfield-Reeve Structures Limited  — steel fabncation
Watson Steel Structures Luruted — steel fabncation
Rowen Siructures Limited — projected contracting
Adas Ward Structures Lirited — steel fabncation
Fisher Engineenng Limited — steel fabncanhon (acquired 8 October 2007}
Steelcraft Erection Services Limited — steel erection
Severfield—Reeve Intemational Limited — overseas contracts
Severfield-Reeve Projects Limited — project managers of building contracts
The Company owns the whole of the 1ssued share capital of the subsidiartes noted above
£000
Cost
At ¥ January 2007 2152
Acguisiion of the Action Merchants Limited group (Fisher Engineenng) 92198
Acquisiion of Dalton Airfield Estate Limited 13 204
At 31 December 2007 107,554

investment tn assoqates
The Company has an interest in two associated companies as follows

Holding % Class of capital
Kennedy Watts Partnershup Limited — CAD/CAM steelwork design 251 Preferred ordinary
Fabsec Limited — development of fire beam 250 Ordinary
£000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 535

Highhights Group Overnew Chairman s Stalement QOperauonal Review
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Debtors
2007 2006
£000 £000
Other debtors 138 672
Prepayments and accrued income - 608
Amounis owed by subsidiary undertakings 30,577 12173
30,695 13 453
Within other debtors there I1s deferred expenditure of £NIl (2006 £649,000) due after more than one year
Creditors — amounts falhing due within one year
2007 2006
£000 £000
Bank borrowings 69.719 -
Cther creditors and accruals 373 2
Corporation tax 96 96
Armounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 42,441 17532
112,629 17,630

Borrowings represent the Group s revolving credit factlity from the Royal Bank of Scotland and National Australia Bank ointly as disclosed m note 23 to the

Consaolidated financial statements The facility 1s available for three years ending 21 August 2010

Provisions for habilties and charges
Deferred tax
The amount of deferred tax provided and unprovided in the financial statements 15

Amount provided Amount unprovided

2007 2006 2007 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000
Excess capital allowances 1,060 843 — —
Other tming differences - — - —
1,060 843 - =

Deferred Taxation — Movement for the year
£000
Al 1 January 2067 843
Current year charge 190
Pnor year adjustment 27
At 31 December 2007 1,060

Financial Review Corporate Goyemance Group Accounts Caompany Accounts
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94 Notes to the Company Financial Statements Year ended 31 December 2007
9 Share capital
2007 2006
£000 £000
Authonsed
27000 000 ordinary shares of 10p each 2700
108,000,000 ordinary shares of 2 5p each 2,700
Issued and fully pad
20,401,969 ordinary shares of t0p each 2,040
88,607 876 ordinary shares of 2 5p each 2,215

1

12

13

14

Highlghts.

There are no share options autstanding as at 31 December 2007

On 8 October 2007 1750 000 ordinary shares of 10p each were issued as discussed i Note 25 to the Consclidated financial statements

On 8 October 2007 the Company s authonsed and 1ssued share capital was sub-dvided on the basis of 4 new ordinary shares of 2 5p each for each existing

ordinary share of 10p each

Share premum account

£000
Balance as at 1 January 2007 9770
Premium anising on the 1ssue of equity shares 36382
Balance at 31 December 2007 46,152
Other reserves
£000
Balance at 1 January 2007 25
Share-based payments in year 604
Balance at 31 December 2007 629
Profit and loss account
£000
Balance at 1 lanuary 2007 11367
Dividends pawd 13037)
Net profit for the year 6777
Balance at 31 December 2007 5,087
Caputal commitments
2007 2006
£000 £000

Contracted for but not provided in the financal statements

Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided an unhimited guarantee to secure any bank overdrafts and leans of all other Group cormpanies At 31 December 2007 these

ameunted to £MNil (2006 £1193 000

Group Ovenaew
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Notice of Annual General Meeting 95

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual Generat Meeting of Severfield—Rowen Pic
will be held at The Anget Inn, Long Street Topdiffe Thirsk, North Yorkshire,
YO7 3RW on Friday 30 May 2008 at 12 noon for the following purposes

Ordmary Business

1

~ o U o

To receve and adopt the Directors Report and Finanoal Statements for the
year ended 31 December 2007 together with the Auditors Report.

To deciare a final dvidend for the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 of 13 25p
net per share, payable on 16 June 2008 to shareholders on the register on
16 May 2008

To approve the Directors Remuneration Report for the year ended
31 December 2007

To re-elect T G Haughey (aged 52} as a director
To re-elect P J Davison {aged 52} as a director
To re-elect ] K Elliott {aged 65) as a director

To reappomt Deloitte & Touche LLP as audtors of the Group and to authonse
the directors to fix thewr remuneration

Special Business

To consider and, ¢f thought fit, to pass the following resotuttons of which number
8 will be proposed as an crdinary resolution and numbers 9 and 10 will be
proposed as speaal resolutions

8

That the directors be and they are hereby generally and uncondinonally
authensed in accordance with Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 ("the
Act") 10 exerase all of the powers of the Company to allot relevant secuntes (s
defined in section 8G{2} of the Act) up to an aggregate nominal amount

of £731,015 provided that such authonty shalt (unless and 10 the extent
previously revoked vaned or renewed by the Company in general meeting)
expire at the condusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held nt 2009 oron 29 August 2009, whichever is the earlier, prowided that
such authonty shalf allow the Company 10 make an offer or enter Into an
agreement which would or right require relevant secunpes to be allotted after
the expiry of such authonty and the directors may allot relevant secunties In
pursuance of any such offer or agreement as If the authonty conferred by the
resolubion had not expired

Finanaial Review

Corperate Govemance

9 That, subject to the passing of resolution 8 set out 1n the notice convening

this meeting the directors be and they are hereby empowered pursuant to
sechan 95 of the Act to allot equity secunties (as defined in section 94(2)

of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 8 as

if section 89 (1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment such power to
expire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company

to be held in 2009, or on 29 August 2009, whichever 15 the earlier save that
the Company may before the expiry of this power make an offer or
agreement which would or mught require equity secunties to be allotted after
the expiry of this power and the directors may allot equity securities n
pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the power had not expired
Such power shall be imited to

0} the allotment of equity secunties in connection with any invitaton made
to holders of ordinary shares to subscrnibe by way of nghts or by way of
open offer or other pro rata offer where the equity secunties respectively
attributable to the interest of all such holders are proporuonate (as nearly
as may be practicable} to the respective numbers of ordinary shares held
by them but subject to such excdusions or other arangements as the
directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with any fractional
entittements or any legal or pracical problems anising i, or pursuant to,
the laws of any terntory or the requirements of any regulatory body or
any recognised stock exchange in any terntory and

G0 the allotment (other than pursuant to (1} above) of equity securnities for
cash up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of £110 760

Group Accounts Company Accounts
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Notice of Annual General Meeting «nunued

10 That the Company be and 1s hereby unconditionally and generally authonsed
10 make market purchases (within the meaning of Secuon 163 of the Act) of
ordinary shares of 2 5p each in its capital on such terms and in such a manner
as the directors may fram time 1o tme determine provided that

&) The maximum number of shares whrch may be so purchased 1s
8,860,788 which represents 10% of the 1ssued ordmnary share capital as
at 25 Apnl 2008

1} The mimmum price which may be so paid 15 2 Sp per share (exclusive
of expenses),

tm The maximumn prce which may be so paid for each share shall not exceed
an amount lexdiusive of expenses) equal 1o 5 per cent over the average of
the muddle market quotations of the ordinary shares as denved from the
Baily Official List of The London Stack Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on whach the Company agrees 1o buy the
shares concermned

(v) This authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2009 or on
29 August 2009 whichever is the earlier

) The Company may agree before the authonty terminates under (v}
above to purchase ordinary shares where the purchase waill or may be
ecuted after the authonty terminates (erther wholly or in part)
he Company may complete such a purchase even though the authority
s terminated

f&ﬁdero the Boar n

P 1 Davison

Secretary

2 May 2008

Dalon Asrfield Industnal Estate, Dalton
Thirsk, North Yorkshire, YO7 3JN

Highlights Groug Overview

Notes

1

Chairman s Statement

A member engtled to attend and vole at the meeting is enttled to appoint one
or more proxies to attend and vote 1n hss stead subject to the Artcles of
Associaton of the Company Proxy forms must be lodged with the registrars of
the Company not less than 48 hours befare the time fixed for the meeting
Lodgement of praxy forms will not preclude a member from attending and
votng at the meeting A proxy need not be a member of the Company A form
of proxy 15 included

The following will be avallable for inspection at the registered office of the
Company dunng normal business hours and, on the day of the Annual
General Meeting, at the aforementioned venue 15 minutes pnor to and
throughout the meeting (a) Register of directors interests {b) Copies of

all directors service contracts (© Memorandum and Arudles of Association of
the Company, {d) Rules of the Severfield-Reeve Executive Share Cption
Scheme, (e} Rules of The Severfield—Reeve Plc 1998 Executive Share Option
Scheme, {f} Rules of The Severfisld=Rowen Pic 1999 Annual Deferred Bonus
Share Scheme (g} Rules of the Severfield—Rowen Share Matching Plan

(h) Rules of the Severfield-Rowen Performance Share Plan () Terms of
reference for Audit Commuttee. {) Terms of reference for Remunerabon
Commuttee, (k) Terms of reference for Mormination Comnuttee, (D Terms and
conditions of appomntment of non-executive directors

Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertficated Secuntres Regulatons 200t
only those shareholders regsstered i the Register of Members of the
Company 48 hours before the ime set for the meeting shall be enbitled to
attend or vote at the Annual General Meeting 1n respect of the number of
shares registered in thewr narme at that ime Changes to mernbers n the
register after this deadline shall be disregarded in determining the nights of
any person to attend or vote at the meeling

Operanonal Review
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Finanaal Review

-« Corporate Govermnance

3» CROS5S DOCKING WAREHOUSE,
PROLOGIS PARK, WELLINGBOROQUGH

This 540,000 sqft warehouse completes
ProLogis Park, which is at the heart of
the UK'’s most strategically important
distnbution location.

The project consists of 1,600 tonnes of
structural steelwork.

Atlas Ward were responsible for the
steelwork on all three buildings, the
first two are now being occupted by
Monsoon and Homebase

» Atlas Ward

Group Atcounts Company Acounts
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